
 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND 
PUBLIC WORKS 

COMMITTEE 
Agenda and Reports 

for the Special meeting on  

Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

at 6.30 pm 

in the Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 

 
© 2025 City of Adelaide. All Rights Reserved. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

Special Meeting Agenda, Tuesday, 2 December 2025, at 6.30 pm 
 
 

 Members – The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith 
Councillor Maher (Chair) 

Councillor Freeman (Deputy Chair) 
Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Snape and Councillors Abrahimzadeh, Cabada, Couros, Davis, Giles, Martin, Noon, 

and Dr Siebentritt  
 

  

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

  
1.   Acknowledgement of Country 

At the opening of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee meeting, the Chair 
will state: 

‘Council acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna 
people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present.  We 
recognise and respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. 
We acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living 
today. 
And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First 
Nations who are present today.’ 

 

 
2.   Apologies and Leave of Absence 

Nil 

 

 
3.   Declaration of Conflict of Interest    
 
4.   Deputations    
 
5.   Workshops    
 
 5.1   Hutt Street Revitalisation - Revised Option B and E 3 - 20 
 
6.   Reports for Recommendation to Council    
 
 6.1   Melbourne Street Revitalisation Concept Endorsement 21 - 72 
 
 6.2   Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade 73 - 81 
 
7.   Closure    

 
 



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

 

Tuesday, 2 December 2025 
Infrastructure and Public 
Works Committee 

Hutt Street Revitalisation - Revised Option 
B and E 
 

Strategic Alignment - Our Places 
Presenter: Tom McCready 
Director City Infrastructure 
 

Public 
 

 

 
 

PURPOSE OF WORKSHOP 
The purpose of this workshop is to present Revised Options B and E for the Hutt Street Revitalisation and to seek 
feedback from Council Members to inform a report to the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee and Council 
in early 2026. 

At the CEO Briefing on 21 October 2025, Council Members requested that specific design elements be considered 
for Options B and E, namely a change to the parking approach for Option E from 45-degree to 60-degree angle 
parking, mid-block pedestrian crossings for both options, confirmation of accessible parking provisions and 
potential widening of the on-road bike lane for Option B.  

Concept development design Options B and E have now been reviewed and revised to accommodate these 
elements in accordance with relevant design and engineering standards and guidelines.   

 

 
KEY QUESTIONS 
The workshop is seeking feedback to the following questions: 

• What are Council Members’ views on the revised Option B and revised Option E? 

• Do Council Members have any feedback that would assist the Administration in the preparation of a report 
to Council? 

 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5.1



Program: Infrastructure

Author: Mark Goudge, Associate Director Infrastructure
Approving Officer: Tom McCready, Director City Infrastructure 

Hutt Street Revitalisation
Revised Option B and E

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee 

2 December 2025

P
age 4

A
ttachm

ent A



On 21 October 2025, a CEO Briefing was conducted to provide detailed information on the 

outcomes of the Concept Development Options consultation and Economic Analysis for 

Hutt Street.

Purpose of this Workshop

The purpose of this workshop is to provide further information to the Committee on the following 

items raised for investigation at the briefing and seek feedback to inform a report to 

Council for decision on an option for delivery.

Option B :

1. Widening of the on-road bicycle lane.

2.  Mid-block pedestrian crossings (impact to parking bays and accessible parking).

Option E :

1. Change to 60-degree angle parking from existing 45-degree.

2. Mid-block pedestrian crossings (impact to parking bays and accessible parking).

Slide 1

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Background & Purpose

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

P
age 5



Slide 2

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Key Questions

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

What are Council 

Members’ views on 

the revised Option B 

and revised Option E?

KEY QUESTION KEY QUESTION

Do Council Members 

have any feedback 

that would assist the 

Administration in the 

preparation of a 

report to Council?

P
age 6



Slide 3

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Project Overview

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Main Strategic Objective:

Our Places

Interesting, purposeful and safe

Facilitate and activate our places in a safe and accessible way for our community

Benefits 

• Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances 

the needs of businesses, residents, and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes 

to our wellbeing and sustainability goals.

• Precinct activation and economic development.

P
age 7



Slide 4

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Pedestrian Refuge Mid-Block crossings

• Pedestrian survey undertaken on 12 November 2025

• Data indicated greatest need for mid-block crossings near 

Davaar Place and McLaren Street (as per plans)

• Traffic engineering assessment identifies pedestrian 

refuges as the most appropriate and safe treatment for Hutt 

Street.

Pedestrian Crossings

Scramble Crossings

• A scramble crossing is used at intersections with high pedestrian 

flow

• Vehicle and pedestrian delays usually increase where scramble 

crossings are implemented

• City examples include Pirie Street / King William Street and at 

both ends of Rundle Mall

• Requires the approval of DIT to permit installation.

• Refer DIT, Operational Instruction 14.1 

Grote Street (west)

P
age 8

https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwia_u2Hs4KRAxVCm68BHSy7J00QFnoECBgQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.dit.sa.gov.au%2F__data%2Fassets%2Fpdf_file%2F0019%2F40177%2FOperational_Instruction_14_1.pdf&usg=AOvVaw3SxX-8Y1HAR0z3wtiGLGEJ&opi=89978449
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwia_u2Hs4KRAxVCm68BHSy7J00QFnoECBgQAQ&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.dit.sa.gov.au%2F__data%2Fassets%2Fpdf_file%2F0019%2F40177%2FOperational_Instruction_14_1.pdf&usg=AOvVaw3SxX-8Y1HAR0z3wtiGLGEJ&opi=89978449


Slide 5

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Revised Option B

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Parking

• Existing car park spaces in Hutt Street between South Terrace and Carrington Street = 132

• Original Option B, reflected 112 parking spaces  

• Each pedestrian refuge crossing will require the removal of 5 car parks to accommodate pedestrian ramps (-10)

• Parking in proximity to the intersections has been reviewed to retain additional car park spaces (+8)

• Overall approximate number of car parks to be retained for revised Option B = 110 spaces

• Net reduction from existing of 22 spaces.

Bike Lane (on-road)

• Current bike lane is 1.3m wide. Proposed 1.5m on-road bike lane with a minimum buffer of 1.2m

• Chevron line marked safety strip buffer behind parked cars in accordance with Austroads Guidelines 

• Total 2.7m width for bike lane and buffer behind parking.  No further widening can be accommodated to maintain recommended width 

of traffic lanes.

P
age 9



Slide 6

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Revised Option B – Design Features

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Note: dimensions vary 

due to on-site conditions

P
age 10



Slide 7

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Street cross section

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Note: dimensions vary due to on-site conditions, including 

width of linemarked buffer zone varies, minimum shown

FootpathFootpath

P
age 11



Slide 8

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Revised Option E

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Parking

• Existing car park spaces in Hutt Street between South Terrace and Carrington Street = 132

• Original Option E retained approximately 76 car parking spaces

• Change from original 45-degree to 60-degree angle parking (+16)

• Each pedestrian refuge crossing will require the removal of 5 car parks to accommodate pedestrian ramps (-10)

• Parking in proximity to the intersections has been reviewed to retain additional car park spaces (+8)

• Overall approximate number of car parks to be retained for revised Option E is 89 spaces

• Net reduction from existing of 43 spaces.

Bike Path (on footpath)

• 1.2m wide bike path with 0.5m vegetation buffer between pedestrian walkway and bike path to improve safety and risk of pedestrian / 

bike conflict

• To maintain compliant alignment with the Australian Standards, the bike path will impact existing outdoor dining areas

• Confident / commuter cyclists may continue to use the road (without an on-road bike lane) rather than the provided path due to potential 

speed restrictions and hazards such as pedestrians crossing the bike path.

Footpath

• Change in parking angle reduces width of footpath from 4m to 3.1m to accommodate deeper car park bay.

P
age 12



Slide 9

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Revised Option E – Design Features

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Note: dimensions vary 

due to on-site conditions

P
age 13



Slide 10

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Street cross section

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Note: dimensions vary due to on-site conditions, including 

width of linemarked buffer zone varies, minimum shown

FootpathFootpath

P
age 14



Slide 10

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Impact to outdoor dining

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

P
age 15



Slide 12

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Option comparison table

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Existing Option B Revised 

Option B

Option E Revised 

Option E

Angle of parking

Perpendicular depth of 

parking spaces

60 degree

5.72m

60 degree

5.1m

60 degree

5.1m

45 degree

4.8m

60 degree

5.1m

Number of on-street car parks

(approximate)

132*

(includes 4x 

accessible car parks)

112 110 

(includes 4x 

accessible car parks 

and 2x pedestrian 

refuge crossings)

76 89 

(includes 4x 

accessible car parks 

and 2x pedestrian 

refuge crossings)

Traffic lane widths 3.5m

3.5m

3m

3.2m

3m

3.2m

3m

3.2m

3m

3.2m

Bike lane/path width 1.3m* (no buffer)

On-road

1.5m + 0.4m buffer  

+ 0.8m buffer

On-road

1.5m + 1.2m buffer

On-road

1.5m + 0.4m buffer

On footpath

1.2m + 0.8m buffer

On footpath

Footpath width 4m 4m 4m 3.6m** 3.1m** + 0.5m 

landscape buffer

+ 0.8m footpath 

buffer (between 

parking & bike path)

Other notes * Dimensions are 

non-compliant with 

Australian Standards

Design of bike lane 

and buffer strip 

modified to reflect 

best practice

** Existing outdoor 

dining areas will be 

impacted by new 

layout

** Existing outdoor 

dining areas will be 

impacted by new 

layout

Note: dimensions vary due to on-site conditions

P
age 16



Slide 13

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Budget and Cost 

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

Draft Budget position (grant funding not included): 

Item New & 

Upgrade

Renewal Total

Council budget allocation (as per LTFP) $12.500m $8.814m* $21.314m

Expended funds to 30 June 2025 $  0.316m $0.262m $ 0.578m

Remaining approved allocation $12.184m $8.552m $20.736m

*Renewal allocation based on preliminary renewal scope. Business Plan & Budget (26/27) forecast for renewals will be updated to $11.477m.

Indicative Project Cost* (April 2025 estimate based on original option scope):

Option New & 

Upgrade

Renewal Total 

Option B (original)

(indicative shortfall)

$13.482m

($1.298m)

$11.447m $24.959m

Option E (original)

(indicative shortfall)

$15.632m

($3.448m) 

$11.447m $27.079m

*Cost estimates will be reviewed following endorsement of a preferred option and as design progresses to manage project cost to budget.

P
age 17



Grant Funding Summary:

• Deed of agreement to secure grant funding is still subject to final negotiations.

• Grant funding can only be used for New/Upgrade costs.

• Grant funding being awarded is based on delivery of the defined scope as set out in the grant funding 

application.

• Grant funding will be required to cover the budget shortfall for both Revised Option B and E, or extra 

funding will be required by Council.

Risk:

At this stage it is unclear as to whether the scope of Revised Option B or E will align with the grant funding 

requirements, including timelines.

Slide 14

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Project Cost and Federal Grant Funding

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

P
age 18



Slide 15

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Next steps and Delivery Timeline

Next Steps:

• Present report directly to Council on the 9 December 2025 with recommendation to proceed with preferred option (subject to 

workshop outcomes)

• Presentation of endorsed option to the Department for Infrastructure and Transport and Federal Government as part of final 

negotiations for grant funding

• Inform and notify community of decision and next steps

• Procurement of detailed design (date to be determined, subject to Council decision).

Delivery Timeline:

Activity Approximate timing

Detailed Design (including procurement) 10 -12 months

Procurement (Construction Delivery) 4 - 6 months

Construction Delivery 18 months

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

P
age 19



Slide 16

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Key Questions

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 2 December 2025

What are Council 

Members’ views on 

the revised Option B 

and revised Option E?

KEY QUESTION KEY QUESTION

Do Council Members 

have any feedback 

that would assist the 

Administration in the 

preparation of a 

report to Council?

P
age 20



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

 

Tuesday, 2 December 2025 
Infrastructure and Public 
Works Committee 

Melbourne Street Revitalisation Concept 
Endorsement 
 

Strategic Alignment - Our Places 
Program Contact:  
Mark Goudge, Associate Director 
Infrastructure 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Tom McCready, Director City 
Infrastructure 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of the report is to update Council Members on the progress made to date on the Melbourne Street 
Revitalisation Project and to seek approval on the key deliverables of this street to progress to community 
engagement and detailed design phase.  

At its meeting on 27 June 2023, Council approved the budgets for all Main Street Revitalisation projects. In 
response to the decision, the concept plans for Melbourne Street have been updated to align project scopes to the 
approved budgets whilst meeting the objectives of transforming the streets to be a desirable destination where 
people want to live, do business and visit, thereby providing economic uplift for our communities.  

At the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee on 18 November 2025, Council Members provided feedback on 
the proposed concept options and noted the construction of two wombat crossings - Stage 1 works which were 
brought forward due to community support and timing of the external grant. 

This report outlines the key concept design deliverables for Melbourne Street Revitalisation and timeline of 
implementation following feedback from Council Members. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The following recommendation will be presented to Council on 9 December 2025 for consideration 

THAT THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL 

THAT COUNCIL 

1. Approves the concept plans for Melbourne Street Revitalisation Project as contained in Attachment A to 
Item 6.1 on the Agenda for the Special meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee held on 
2 December 2025. 

2. Notes the construction of Stage 1 works (Melbourne Street wombat crossings), were brought forward due 
to strong community support and timing of the external grant funding, which is anticipated to be completed 
by 30 June 2026. 

3. Notes the community will be engaged to provide views on the proposed concept for Stage 2 capital works 
of Melbourne Street Revitalisation Project, and their feedback will be reviewed to be incorporated in the 
subsequent design and construction phase.  

4. Notes that a project update, including an engagement summary will be provided to Council once 70% 
detailed design and construction staging plan are completed.  

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6.1



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
City of Adelaide 
2024-2028 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Our Places  

Facilitate and activate our places in a safe and accessible way for our community. 

“Deliver quality street and laneway upgrades, main streets, precincts, and neighbourhood 
revitalisation and improvements that make Adelaide well-designed, safe and unique.” 

Policy Not as a result of this report 

Consultation Community engagement will be undertaken to obtain feedback on Stage 2 concept, to 
inform detailed design and construction staging.  

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative Not as a result of this report 

Opportunities Not as a result of this report 

25/26 Budget 
Allocation 

The total project budget for Melbourne Street Revitalisation is $15.1 million. 

New & Upgrade $6.5m 

Renewal $8m 

State Government Funding $600,000 

A New and Upgrade budget of $600,000 is allocated to undertaken design and planning 
activities for the overall revitalisation project in 2025/26 

An additional New and Upgrade budget of $750,000, supplemented by $600,000 of 
external funding, is assigned to the construction of stage 1 works (wombat crossings).  

Proposed 26/27 
Budget Allocation 

The remaining approved New and Upgrade forward estimate of $6,500,000 and applicable 
Renewal allocation will be confirmed via the Annual Business Plan and Budget processes 
over 2026/27 and 2027/28.   

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Dependent on type of asset, with asset life expectancy between 20-50 years.  

25/26 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report  

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Minimised through design.  

2% per annum maintenance cost increase will be anticipated due to installation of new 
assets. 

Other Funding 
Sources To be pursued where relevant opportunities become available. 

Page 22



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

DISCUSSION 
Background 

1. At its meeting on 27 June 2023, Council provided direction on the prioritisation and budget allocations for the 
Main Streets Revitalisation projects. Melbourne Street was assigned with a total New and Upgrade allocation 
of $6.5 million for detailed design in 2024/25 and delivery from 2025/26 onwards. The Council decision can 
be viewed at Link 1. 

2. Following confirmation of the approved budget, the concept plans for Melbourne Street Revitalisation Project 
were refined to ensure alignment with the budget allocation and updated community feedback obtained post 
2021, which shaped the master plan.   

3. At the Infrastructure and Public Works (IPW) Committee on 18 November 2025, Council Members provided 
feedback on the updated concept options. The workshop paper can be viewed at Link 2. The Committee 
were also provided with an update on the short-term activation improvement works and stage 1 capital works 
(wombat crossings). The latter is brought forward due to strong community support and timing of the external 
funding.  

Melbourne Street Master Plan Phased Implementation 
4. Stage 1 of the project involves installation of two wombat crossings to bookend the precinct and to provide 

traffic calming benefits contributing to increased street safety and comfort. These crossings are brought 
forward due to strong community support and timing of the $600,000 financial contribution from the National 
Road Safety Program to be expensed by 30 June 2026. 

5. The concept plan of the subsequent stage of capital works was further refined following the feedback 
received from the Committee on 18 November 2025.  

6. Stage 2 capital works involve a full street improvement to be delivered via new street trees, renewing 
existing lighting infrastructure and street furniture along the full length of Melbourne Street (from Brougham 
Place to Mann Terrace) with a focus on the village heart and main strip of busy pedestrian activity zone to 
the east. 

7. The project will deliver: 

7.1. New street trees to support local economic activity by creating more attractive, comfortable and 
liveable streetscapes that encourage foot traffic and community interactions. 

7.2. Renewed lighting infrastructure that not only fulfills the technical requirements to promote safety and 
connectivity but also creates a night-time atmosphere and identity for the street. 

7.3. Improvements to the existing urban elements, assets that encourage visitors to discover the diverse 
range of businesses along the street and enhances user experiences for first-time and frequent 
visitors. These include street furniture such as bike racks, seats and wayfinding signags, as well as 
bus shelters and planter boxes. 

7.4. Localised improvements to the footpath along the full length of the street to provide an effective public 
realm refresh, with environmentally sustainable principles in mind.  

7.5. Destination-focused and traffic-calmed street with a 30 km/h speed limit in alignment with citywide 
speed limit review. The lower speed limit not only significantly increases safety for cyclists riding on 
Melbourne Street but also creates a more pleasant environment that promotes outdoor dining, window 
shopping and thriving street-level interaction. 

7.6. Considerations are also in place to promote Melbourne Street as a destination for all modes of 
transport. This includes but not limited to improving the linkage to McKinnon Parade/Finniss Street 
and Stanley Street, which are identified as strategic cycle routes in the Integrated Transport Strategy, 
and enhancement of the existing bus stops for better public transport experience.  

7.7. Reinforcing the unique brand of Melbourne Street at the village heart – a place where people meet, 
linger and connect through: 

7.7.1. Celebrating the heart with widened footpath to create space for lush greenery and unique and 
iconic public art representative of Melbourne Street’s identity.  

7.7.2. Consolidating existing bus stops 3 and 3A into a new bus stop to be installed immediately west 
of the village heart to create a welcoming sense of arrival for visitors using public transport. This 
strategically located bus stop, with the opportunity to be equipped with enhanced facilities will 

Page 23

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g750/Public%20minutes%2027th-Jun-2023%2017.30%20Council.pdf?T=11
https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g1206/Public%20reports%20pack%2018th-Nov-2025%2019.00%20Infrastructure%20and%20Public%20Works%20Committee.pdf?T=10


 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

strengthen the street as the public transport corridor that connects major hubs of activity to 
Melbourne Street as a destination. 

7.7.3. Stamped asphalt treatment on road pavement and reduced crossing distances at the 
intersection of Melbourne Street and Jerningham Street for traffic calming and increased ease 
of access to connect both sides of Melbourne Street.  

7.8. Introducing more vibrancy to the street along the main strip of hospitality businesses to increase 
activation, drive visitation and improve visitor experience, through: 

7.8.1. Creation of flexi-zones to allow the widened verge space to be used either as activation areas 
or on-street parking east of Jerningham Street intersection to West Pallant Street. 

7.8.2. New surface treatment to footpath east of Jerningham Street intersection to West Pallant, with 
unique footpath paving patterns that transition to existing footpath on both ends, connecting to 
the village heart to the west and to the wombat crossing to the east.  

7.8.3. Stamped asphalt treatment and new compliant kerb ramps at minor side streets for traffic 
calming and safer access to encourage foot traffic. 

8. The vision, design principles and concept plan are contained in Attachment A. 

9. Timeline of implementation of the Melbourne Street Revitalisation Project: 

9.1. Stage 1 Wombat Crossings are due for completion by the end of 2025/26. 

9.2. The community engagement and design development activities of stage 2 capital works will be 
undertaken following Council endorsement of the preferred concept plans. The following table 
provides an indicative schedule of key project activities for Stage 2 streetscape upgrade:  

Month Key project activity 

December 2025 Council approval of concept plans 

March – June 2026 Community and stakeholder engagement on concept plans 

March 2026 – March 2027 Detailed investigation and design phase 

Council noting of 70% design update and community engagement 
summary 

2026/27 and 2027/28 Procurement of construction contractor and construction commences 

Council approval of construction contract 

 

Community Engagement Approach 

10. Consultation with our community has been ongoing, utilising a range of approaches since 2018, in alignment 
with the below Main Street Revitalisation framework:  

10.1. Phase 1 Benchmarking 

10.1.1. The phase involved a series of research and stakeholder engagement activities, including, 
but not limited to, focus groups, surveys, Round Tables (conducted between April and 
October 2021) and the establishment of Place Coordinators to facilitate place-led research 
and data collection.  

10.2. Phase 2 Establishment of a street-specific Master Plan  

10.2.1. The community was actively consulted on the draft vision and design principles to better 
understand community’s priorities and set the foundation for the concept design. The master 
plans were subsequently reviewed and endorsed by Council at its meeting on 14 December 
2021. The approved master plan for Melbourne Street can be viewed at Link 3.  

10.3. Phase 3 Culmination of feedback into draft Concept Packs  

10.3.1. Through ongoing interactions, our community and Council Members were presented with 
and provided feedback on several street-specific values and correlated design principles, 
which formed a concept options pack. This pack was further refined following confirmation of 
budgets for each street, with Attachment A being the result of seven years of meaningful 
and ongoing community and stakeholder engagement.  

Page 24

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/Data/Council/202112141730/Agenda/Council%20Meeting%20-%20Agenda%20without%20conf%20-%2014%20December%202021.pdf


 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

11. The next phase of community engagement for Melbourne Street Revitalisation Project, will commence 
following Council’s endorsement of the concept plans presented in Attachment A. This phase of 
engagement involves the following stages:  

11.1. Design Progression (March 2026) 

11.1.1. Engage with our community throughout the design phase to align and maintain community 
expectations. This includes obtaining community feedback on key design features of the 
proposed concept for Stage 2 capital works.  

11.1.2. Further review, revise and refine the design to align with community feedback and approved 
budgets.  

11.2. Construction commencing (Q4 2026/27) 

11.2.1. Collect feedback and communicate construction approach and staging, including key 
construction milestones and potential impact on the community. 

11.3. Construction underway (2026/27 and 2027/28) 

11.3.1. Keep our community informed of progress, notify upcoming works, and respond to enquiries 
and issues arising.  

12. The community engagement approach for each main street follows a similar framework, with timing and 
engagement methods being developed to suit each street. 

Next Steps 
13. Upon endorsement of the concept design, the community will be engaged to provide their feedback that will 

be reviewed and used to refine the design phase of the project.  

14. Further project update, including a community engagement summary, will be provided to Council for noting 
once 70% detailed design and construction staging plan are completed. 

15. Subject to Council approval, the construction budget will be approved through the Annual Business Plan and 
Budget process.  

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Council Decision – 27 June 2023 

Link 2 – Workshop Paper – Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – 18 November 2025 

Link 3 – Melbourne Street Revitalisation Master Plan - December 2021 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Melbourne Street Revitalisation Concept Pack  

 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 25



Melbourne Street
Concept Package

REVISED
DECEMBER 2025

P
age 26

A
ttachm

ent A



City of Adelaide

P
age 27



N

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 3

N

Finniss StreetFinniss Street

MacKinnon ParadeMacKinnon Parade

MacKinnon ParadeMacKinnon Parade

Bundeys Road

Bundeys Road

Brougham Place

Brougham Place

From
e Road

From
e Road

Stanley StreetStanley Street

Kingston TerraceKingston TerraceKingston TerraceKingston Terrace

Le
fe

vr
e 

Te
rr

ac
e

Le
fe

vr
e 

Te
rr

ac
e

Stanley StreetStanley Street

Brougham
 Place

Brougham
 Place

Jerningham
                  Street

Jerningham
                  Street

M
ann Road

M
ann Road

Melbourne Street

Acknowledgement of Country

City of Adelaide tampinthi, ngadlu Kaurna 
yartangka panpapanpalyarninthi (inparrinthi). 
Kaurna miyurna yaitya mathanya Wama 
Tarntanyaku. Parnaku yailtya, parnaku tapa 
purruna, parnaku yarta ngadlu tampinthi. Yalaka 
Kaurna miyurna itu yailtya, tapa purruna, yarta 
kuma puru martinthi, puru warri-apinthi, puru 
tangka martulayinthi.

City of Adelaide acknowledges the traditional 
country of the Kaurna people of the Adelaide 
Plains and pays respect to Elders past and 
present. We recognise and respect their cultural 
heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land.
We acknowledge that they are of continuing 
importance to the Kaurna people living today.

Contents
	                      Page

1. What Makes a Great Main Street		  4
What Makes a Great Main Street?		  5

Executive Summary		  6

Vision		  7

Guiding Principles		  8

Project Background		  9

2. Project Context		  10   
City Context		  11

Street Context		  12

Existing Street Dynamics		  13

Key Statistics		  14

Opportunities		  15

3. Community Engagement		  16
Community Engagement Process		  17

Summary of Results		  18

Community Feedback		  20

4. Concept Design		  21
Design Principles		  22

Design Summary		  23

Design Benefits Statistics		  24

Design Overview		  25

Concept Design		  26

Cross Sections		  32

Artist’s Impressions		  33

	                      Page

5. Appendices		  35
A. Transport Patterns		  36

B. Precinct Car Parking Opportunities 		  37

C. Visitation & Vacancy Data		  38

D. Traffic and Transport Impacts		  39

D. Bus Stop Rationalisation		  40

F. Benefits of Reallocating Public Space		  41     

G. Precedent Projects - King William Road		  42

H. Precedent Projects - Hindley Street		  43

I. Short Term Improvements - Implemented		  44

J. Stage 1 - West Wombat Crossing		  45

K. Stage 1 - East Wombat Crossing		  46

                                                   M e l b o u r n e   S t r e e t M e l b o u r n e   S t r e e t

P
age 28



Part one

What Makes a 
Great Main 
StreetP

age 29



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 5

What Makes a Great Main Street?

2. A diverse and competitive commercial mix with 
active frontages and attractive shopfronts

3. Public spaces / gathering spaces that encourage 
active and passive activity

4. Authentic marketable and identifiable 
destination branding on-street and online

5. Accessible and safe for all users, including 
pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles

6. Green, connected canopies,  
shaded and pleasant

8. Celebration of the unique local and 
heritage character

10. Connected stakeholders working 
collaboratively towards a common vision

7. People living close by,  
servicing and supported by the local population, 

with a human scale density and a “heart”

9. Tailored events and activations  
that act as an anchor for visitation by locals and 

external visitors

1. High quality public realm and amenities 

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
10

An integration of design and place-led approaches will lead to a successful, thriving, beautiful, and connected main street.
Here are some of the key ingredients that go toward making a great main street:

P
age 30



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 6

Executive Summary
Melbourne Street
Melbourne Street is the focal point for lower North Adelaide with the Adelaide Park Lands as its bookends. 
Characterised by an eclectic offering of quirky cafés and dining along its eastern length and the provision of 
medical services west of Jerningham Street, it is valued for its high street atmosphere and heritage charm, while 
also serving as a busy road link from the north-eastern suburbs into the city core.

Melbourne Street has good bones but has lost some of its former gloss and confident personality through an 
aging and disconnected streetscape. Lifting the appearance of the public realm and functionality for all users will 
elevate its appeal and raise its profile towards recovering the popular artisan and attractive destination it once 
was. The concept design explores ways to attract people back to the street. One necessary move is to address the 
impact of large traffic volumes at peak times and noisy buses which affect overall amenity and make crossing the 
street overwhelming as well as unsafe. Within the street’s constraints, the concept seeks to optimise precinct 
parking to maintain a practical level of on-street spaces that support customer access and business needs. At the 
same time, it introduces wider footpaths, shorter crossing distances, and more frequent prioritised pedestrian 
crossings at key locations. In conjunction with a reduced speed limit, noise will be reduced, access increased, and 
the street will feel more comfortable.  

Around the village centre near Jerningham Street, the street has a lively atmosphere, supported by pedestrian-
scale character buildings, verandahs, and greenery that create a welcoming feel. Further west, however, the 
character shifts as building setbacks increase, frontages become less active, and high fences with limited 
pedestrian access reduce the vibrancy of the street. The streetscape becomes hotter and less comfortable beyond 
the village centre towards both ends of the street with fewer shade trees and sparse greening, detracting from the 
village charm. By adding greening; rationalising the street furniture and creating dedicated activity zones, the 
demands on the pedestrian realm will be less competitive and produce calmer and safer environment for 
comfortable and easy access.

Establishing wider footpaths and safe crossing points with flexible parking within the village heart, balances and 
refocusses the importance of forming connections while activating the street breathing life into the existing retail, 
commercial and hospitality businesses. 

The Melbourne Street concept design provides solutions for community desires by providing the following 
benefits:

•	 Safer intersections with shorter and more frequent crossing points

•	 The rejuvenation of an activated, vibrant village atmosphere and experience with Public Art

•	 Upgraded footpaths with linkages to active transport networks and public transport amenities 

•	 Additional greening and opportunities for integrated stormwater initiatives

•	 New improved street lighting for the precinct. 

Stage 1 - West Wombat Crossing: View looking north-east along Melbourne Street of proposed raised wombat 

View looking south-west toward Jerningham Street, safer intersection with shorter pedestrian crossings

“The street doesn’t reflect its million dollar 
suburb like it once did.”

- Focus Group Participant

P
age 31



Vision
Melbourne Street is an appealing destination of choice for locals 

and visitors. Known for its polish, Melbourne Street offers a range 
of artisan experiences and celebrates its dining culture to its east, 

while providing specialist services to its west.

P
age 32



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 8

Community engagement was undertaken between 7 March and 4 April 2022 to seek feedback on the draft 
Vision and Design Principles, to better understand community priorities for Melbourne Street (refer to Part 3 
Community Engagement for more detail, page 16-20). These Design Principles set the foundation for, and 
guide the concept design presented in this document. 

These Design Principles are listed in order of priority:

Guiding Principles
Melbourne Street

Refresh the public realm 
Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances 
the needs of businesses, residents, and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes 
to our wellbeing and whole-of-life asset and sustainability goals. 

Vibrancy & Creative Connections 
Establish public art opportunities and provide a range of coordinated cultural projects and 
activities to increase activation, drive visitation and improve the visitor experience.

Curate the business and commercial mix
Establish a business and retail identity with a diverse offering to increase its popularity as 
a destination for locals and visitors. Support initiatives that assist in driving high value, 
destination tenants to the street.

Accessibility & Connectivity
Pursue opportunities to achieve a more pedestrian friendly main street to support 
businesses, outdoor dining opportunities, enhance social interactions and provide a safer 
movement and traffic calming. Promote available parking and options for flexibility.

Unique brand and identity  
Create a streetscape that is cohesive, polished, bespoke and celebrates the existing historic 
village charm. Enhance the public ‘heart’ as the epicentre and provide unique experiences 
ensuring a robust local community.

P
age 33



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 9

Design led research and data 
collection to inform action 
and integrated business plan 
 

Lord Mayor Roundtable 
established and 
stakeholder engagement 
commenced

Internal 
stakeholder 
working group 
established

Shared visionary 
activities and common 
themes identified by 
stakeholders 

Delivery of short-term 
activation, improvement 
and engagement 
projects

Production of detailed 
action plan capturing 
current state

Main Street Revitalisation 
team established with 
Place Coordinator  
(Single point of contact)

Draft long term vision, 
objectives and related 
action plans and 
timelines shared with 
Elected Members for 
endorsement

Research (2019—2020) Short term (2021—2022) Medium term (2023—2025) Long term (2025—2026)

Phased improvements 
to continue to be 
funded, designed and 
delivered

Community engagement has been undertaken using a range of approaches since 2018.

State Government $1M Grant 
funding received for the project.

Council approves the project 
budget of $6.5m New & Upgrade 
for planning and design in 
2025/26 and construction to 
commence from 2026/27.

Present concept plans revised to 
consider the approved project 
budget.

Engage with Community through 
Detailed Design phase to ensure 
alignment of expectations. 
Further review, revise and refine 
the design documentation to align 
with community feedback and  
approved budget.

Short-Term Improvement
Works 
City of Adelaide
August 2022

Revised Concept Plan
City of Adelaide
November 2025

Project Budget and 
Priority for Delivery
City of Adelaide
June 2023

Next steps 

A Master Plan was reviewed and 
endorsed by Council in December 
2021.

Melbourne Street Master 
Plan
City of Adelaide
December 2021

Four concept design options were 
developed and presented to 
Council in May 2022.

Draft Concept Options  
 
City of Adelaide
May 2022

Project Background
Melbourne Street

WE ARE HERE

(This document)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT MILESTONES

Stakeholder feedback 
and short term trial 
monitoring evaluation

Concept Design commences 
including data analysis, further 
investigations and continued 
stakeholder engagement 

P
age 34



Melbourne Street, 1910
State Library of South Australia

Part two

Project 
Context

P
age 35



Warnpangga 
Park 10

Nantu 
Wama
Park 6

St. Peter’s 
Cathedral

Tandotitingga 
(Park 29)

Brougham 
Gardens

Melbourne Street

City Context

Melbourne Street is located in North Adelaide and is an important connection from the Northern and 
North-Eastern suburbs to the CBD. It is surrounded by important city landmarks such as Adelaide 
Oval, Adelaide Zoo, Adelaide Aquatic Centre and the Park Lands which together makes North 
Adelaide an attractive place to live, work and/or play. It has potential to be an important anchor 
point to the city and attract many to explore the retail, restaurants and heritage character street feel.

N

Adelaide 
Oval

Women’s and 
Children’s 
Hospital

The 
Memorial 
Hospital

Adelaide 
Zoo

Tidlangga 
Park 9

Playground

Warnpangga 
Park 10

Nantu 
Wama
Park 6

North-Eastern 
Suburbs

Adelaide 
CBD

Adelaide 
CBD

Adelaide 
CBD

O
’C

on
ne

ll 
St

re
et

O
’C

on
ne

ll 
St

re
et Park lands Trail

Pa
rk

 la
nd

s T
ra

il

Adelaide 
CBD

Melbourne Street Concept DesignMelbourne Street Concept Design

River Torrens/ 

Karrawirra Parri

SIR
 ED

WIN
 SM

ITH
 AV

BUNDEYS ROAD

KI
NG

 W
ILL

IA
M

 R
OA

D

MON
TE

FIO
RE

 R
OA

D
M

AN
N

 RO
AD

FRO
M

E RO
AD

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 11

P
age 36



PP

Street Context
Melbourne Street

LEGEND

Taxi rank at all times 

Bus stop

Signalised pedestrian crossing

High traffic volume at peak times

Laneways and small streets

Cycling lane/ park land trail

Smaller laneways and/ or main 
pedestrians links

N

Tidlangga 
Park 9

Playground

Pa
rk

 L
an

d 
Tr

ai
l

Warnpangga 
Park 10

JERN
IN

GH
AM

                                       STREET

BRO
U

GH
AM

 PL

FRED
ERICK ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

D
U

N
N

 ST

E PALLAN
T ST

BO
W

ER ST

N
EW

 ST

N
EW

LAN
DS LAN

E

STANLEY ST

MACKINNON PD

FINNISS ST

SIR
 ED

WIN
 

SM
ITH

 AV

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

HAC
KN

EY
 RO

AD

MELBOURNE 		                                          STREET

MACKINNON PD

BUNDEYS ROAD

FRO
M

E RO
AD

WAR MEMORIAL DRIVE

PALMER PLACE

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 12

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VILLAGE HEART MAIN STRIP SLEEP + STAY EASTERN 
ENTRY

WESTERN 
ENTRY

P
age 37



ARTH
U

R
STREET

N

OLD                                        STREET SUSSEX                                        STREET

B

B

B

B B

B

B

B B

B

PPP

P

B

Movement Pedestrian Comfort Facilities

Motorcycle park

Cycling lane/ Park lands trail

Loading Zone Area

Car park

Vehicle direction/ access

Signalised crossing

Extended footpath and informal 
crossing

Pedestrian links/ desire line

Outdoor dining zone on 
public footpath

Uncomfortable/ unshaded 
footpath

Tree canopy Bus stop

Driveway

* On road bike lanes to be added to Jerningham Street.

Taxi zone

Existing off-street car 
parking

City connector route

JERN
IN

G
H

AM
                                                 STREET

VILLAGE HEART

MELBOURNE                                        STREET MELBOURNE                                        STREET

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 13

Existing Street Dynamics
Melbourne Street

BRO
U

G
H

AM
 PL

FRO
M

E RD

N
EW

 
STREET

FRED
ERICK

 STREET

N
EW

LAN
D

S 
LAN

E

W
 PALLAN

T 
STREET

E PALLAN
T 

STREET

BO
W

ER
STREET

D
U

N
N

STREET

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

M
AN

N
 

TERRACE

Melbourne Street is a narrow street and its width is consistent along its entire length. 
There are two development zones which have created two very separate and distinct 
character and scale. Melbourne Street east feels intimate and welcoming with mostly 
smaller buildings with active frontages abutting the public realm, while Melbourne Street 
west feels wide and exposed, with its buildings setback from the public realm, high walls 
and passive frontages feel disconnected from the streets. 

Melbourne Street’s distinctive functions can be easily defined between east and west; the 
western half end prioritises healthcare, social assistance, professional and medical services, 
while the eastern half houses accommodation, food services and retail.   

P
age 38



2nd least
Population

Age Groups & Background

Housing + Income

Melbourne Street

Average Number of Vehicles (weekdays) 85th Percentile Speed *

Morning Peak (8am-9am) 1,212 42 km/h

Afternoon Peak (4pm-5pm) 1,263 43 km/h

Daily Traffic (24 hours) 15,322 46 km/h

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 14

Key Statistics

Good proximity to cycling routes
Convenient access via cycling routes including the Park Lands Trail and North-South Bikeway connecting to 
and from the city, north via Brougham Place and along Finniss Street and MacKinnon Parade to the North-
Eastern suburbs. However, the bike lanes on Melbourne Street are currently too narrow and non-compliant 
(with limited opportunity to amend without removing parking or narrowing the footpath due to the very 
narrow road reserve), with a high risk of being hit by opening car doors. Alternative low trafficked routes 
more suitable for cycling include Finniss Street and MacKinnon Parade or Bundeys Road.

Bus Service
Melbourne Street is part of an important bus link between the City centre and the Northern and North-
Eastern suburbs. Melbourne Street is also serviced by the City Connector, with a stop located near 
Jerningham Street close to the main intersection. To improve the operation of the bus corridor and the 
overall user experience, it is proposed to rationalise the number of bus stops in the street with improved 
spacing and remove one bus stop away from the Jerningham Street intersection.

High vehicle volumes in peak hours
Traffic volumes are medium to heavy for a single carriageway - two way street, particularly in peak times with 
traffic often backing up at the main intersections. The high vehicle volumes negatively impact the amenity of 
the street but are also the main mode of access for people coming from beyond Lower North Adelaide. Due 
to the high traffic volumes and speed limit, vehicular traffic also causes noise pollution and contribute to an 
unpleasant experience on the street. A summary of traffic data collected in August 2025 is provided below:

Walkable neighbourhood
Melbourne Street has a very low catchment area (within a 400m walkable distance), due to its low population,  
and it’s proximity to O’Connell Street (which captures a wider and larger population in North Adelaide. 
Melbourne Street’s catchment area is limited to the Park Lands and terrace boundaries (“JLL Main Streets 
Retail Report”, 2013).

LOW POPULATION
2,473 People 
33 declined from Previous Year

LOW POPULATION 
GROWTH 
From 2011 to 2016, 
population increased by 70 
people equating to a change 
of 0.63% per year over that 
period.  

HIGH INCOME LEVELS 
20% above metropolitan Adelaide 
average

GROUP & SINGLE PERSON 
HOUSEHOLDS 
High levels of group households and 
single person households

MEDIUM & HIGH DENSITY 
DWELLINGS
A high proportion of medium and 
higher density dwellings, accounting for 
72.3% of all dwellings

LARGE STUDENT POPULATION 
Larger percentage of ‘Tertiary education 
& independence’ compared to the rest 
of metro Adelaide (25.8% compared to 
9.5%) and a larger percentage of ‘Young 
workforce’ (20.7% compared to 13.8%)

HIGH PROPORTION OF 
YOUNG PEOPLE 
High proportion of 20-34 year old residents 
(36.9%) compared with metropolitan 
Adelaide (20.5%)

FEW CHILDREN
Children 14 and under account for 6.2% 
of the population compared with an 
average of 17.7% across metropolitan 
Adelaide

populated area in the City of 
Adelaide, just ahead of the 
‘South West Corner’ (i.e. area 
west of Morphett Street/south 
of Grote Street)

The following summarises the population and housing characteristics of Melbourne Street and surrounds. 
Melbourne Street is categorised within ‘Lower North Adelaide’ by the Australian Bureau of Statistics/Profile 
ID. The Lower North Adelaide profile area is bounded by Lefevre Terrace and Kingston Terrace in the north, 
Mann Terrace in the east, MacKinnon Parade, Brougham Place, Sir Edwin Smith Avenue and Pennington 
Terrace in the south, and Palmer Place and Brougham Place in the west.

Availability of parking
A parking study was undertaken in November 2025 at 10am and 1pm on a Wednesday and Saturday and 
found that there was parking availability on Melbourne Street, surrounding streets and the off-street 
carparks.  A summary of the results is provided below:

Based on ABS Resident Population 2021, 
Profile ID

*That speed that 85% of motorists are travelling at or below, usually is a good guide for the speed limit in a street.

SPACES
120

1788
on & off street 
car parks

Average occupancy:

MADE UP OF + 1567
Lion 

Hotel 
Car Park

OVERALL MELBOURNE 
STREET

Jerningham 
Street Car 

Park

Dunn Street 
Car Park 

(CoA Owned)

SPACESSPACES
49

ON-STREET 
SPACES52

on a WEDNESDAY on a SATURDAY
69% 51%

on a WEDNESDAY on a SATURDAY
70% 69%

P
age 39



B

BB

B B

B

B

N

PP

B

B

BB
BB

High traffic volumes at 
peak times

Improve cycling links 

Activate/ promote link areas 

Bus stop location to remain

Improve pedestrian access

Safety improvements to signalised 
intersections

Enhance activity zones

Increase existing street tree canopy 
and greening opportunities

Available off-street car park

Improve side street connections

Heritage buildings

New public art opportunities

B

Bus stop location to be removed

New bus stop location

B

P

Improve pedestrian movement 
and street connectivity by 
slowing traffic speeds and 
additional pedestrian priority 
crossing points at key locations 
along the street

Activate business frontages by 
decluttering street furniture and 
promoting flexible activity zones 
developing unique identities and 
contributing to the overall street 
identity and brand 

Enhance the village heart by 
creating places to meet and 
gather, add surprise and create 
interest through new iconic 
public art and interpretive art 
and history trails

Encourage 
increased use of 

public transport by 
upgrading public 

transport amenities

Improve links and 
access to Park 

Lands trail

Support local 
businesses and 
professional services 
by refreshing the 
public realm

Improve links to the Park 
Lands and provide better 
connectivity through 
wayfinding, signage

Upgrade and rationalise 
locations of bus stops 
as required to improve 
access and amenity of 
bus services 

Activate laneways, encourage 
open-air markets and linkages 
to Dunn Street car park. 
Partial or full street closure 
opportunitiesCreate a gateway 

entry statement that is 
welcoming and inviting 
and identifies the street 
as both a day and night 
time destination 

Support local residents and 
businesses by refreshing the 
public realm

N
EW

LAN
D

S LAN
E

JERN
IN

GH
AM

                                 STREET

OLD                                        STREET SUSSEX                                        STREET

BRO
U

GH
AM

 PLACE

FRED
ERICK ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

E PALLAN
T ST

N
EW

 ST

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

BO
W

ER ST

Melbourne Street

Opportunities

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 15

P
age 40



Part three

Community 
Engagement

P
age 41



Melbourne Street

Community Engagement Process

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 17

Each of the main streets across the city have active and engaged traders, property owners and residents including 
traders and precinct associations. The City of Adelaide has adopted a place-led, evidence based approach to 
developing designs that will deliver positive outcomes for the community, and has sought feedback from 
stakeholders at key milestones during the development of the concept design. A number of studies and 
community and business engagements have been undertaken in Melbourne Street over the last few years.

Phase 1 - Benchmarking

Since February 2021, the following was achieved:

•	 Place audits for each of the streets

•	 Single Point of Contact (Place Coordinator) allocated to each Street to build relationships and community 
connections, and to identify opportunities that are place specific.

•	 Lord Mayor Round Tables 
The Lord Mayor Roundtable worked together with stakeholders to address challenges and identify 
opportunities to improve the amenity of the Main Streets for businesses, residents, and city users.  

•	 City User Profile Survey – City of Adelaide 
The City User Profile survey is important for profiling our city residents, workers, students, and visitors - it tells 
us, who uses the city, how they use it and how their behaviours are changing. Designated questions were 
asked to identify the mainstreet profiles as an area of importance and prepare CoA for future needs and help 
measure how successful our current city initiatives are.

June 2021: Focus group discussions were led by consultancy Square Holes on behalf of the City of Adelaide to 
better understand people’s perceptions regarding the Melbourne Street precinct, including how people visiting the 
street felt, how often they visited and how they believe it could be improved.

Phase 2 - Vision and Design Principles

March - April 2022

Stakeholders were asked to review and comment on the proposed vision for Melbourne Street, rank and prioritise 
a range of design principles (objectives), to create a series of themes for the street.

Phase 3 - Concept Design

•	 Stage 1: Wombat Crossings

Public consultation was undertaken between 18 October and 15 November 2023, with 94% of respondents 
indicating pedestrian safety crossing needed improvement. In response to community feedback and in 
alignment with the master plan, two wombat crossings, creating bookends to the Melbourne Street precinct 
will be constructed in 2026. The project will receive $600,000 contribution from the National Road Safety 
Program funded by the Government of South Australia. 

•	 Stage 2: Public Realm Refresh

Stakeholders will be asked to provide feedback on the proposed concept design for Melbourne Street, to ensure 
it aligns with community expectations and the agreed design vision and principles. If supported, this design will 
then form the basis for detailed design development for construction; pending funding availability.

P
age 42



Phase 1 - Benchmarking

Summary of Results

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 18

Square Holes was engaged to conduct focus group discussions for four priority main streets (Hindley, Melbourne, 
O’Connell and Hutt Streets) with residents living within three kilometres of each area, to understand the strengths 
and challenges of each of the main streets by gaining an in depth understanding of residents’ attitudinal and 
behavioural responses to the relevant street. 

Objectives of the research included:

1. Understand residents’ use and interaction with each given main street

2. Examine residents’ perceptions of the individual character and strengths of each main street

3. Examine residents’ perceptions of the shortcomings of each main street

4. Identify the key competitors to each main street, including other streets and precincts

5. Explore drivers to increase resident visitation

Summary of findings:

•	 Melbourne Street is home to some local favourites 

•	 Sense that Melbourne Street is not worth travelling to and is yet to be discovered even by local residents

•	 The perceived limited availability of parking hinders visitation to the precinct 

•	 The street has lost its sense of direction despite its somewhat funky history

•	 There is a need to define a new identity for the street 

•	 Opportunity to integrate the two halves of Melbourne Street with the professional services, businesses and 
colleges at the western end and the restaurants to the east 

•	 Melbourne Street could further develop its position as an appealing location for work, study and leisure

“More parklets for businesses and calm 
peak hour traffic”

“Melbourne Street is really struggling for identity . I mean, 
establishments like The Lion are still there, and Elephant 
Walk. Tiny little hole in the wall coffee bar that’s been 
there since the ‘70s, unchanged.”
- Focus Group Participant

- Focus Group Participant

P
age 43



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 19

1

2

3

4

Several times a year

Once a month

Once a year

Never

Brand & identity

Introduce more vibrancy

Refresh the public realm

Accessibility

Curate the business mix2

1

3

4

5

Phase 2 - Vision & Design Principles
Undertaken in March and April 2022, community engagement on the 
Melbourne Street vision and design principles.

•	 58 people made 59 contributions to the survey

•	 4 people made 10 contributions to the interactive map

•	 392 people were aware and visited the webpage

•	 231 people were informed and browsed supporting documents and/
or FAQs

•	 Approximately 20 people attended one of two drop-in sessions at 
locations on Melbourne Street

Summary of Results

Refr
esh

 th
e p

ublic
 re

alm
 

Curat
e t

he b
usin

ess
 m

ix

Intro
duce

 m
ore 

vib
ran

cy

Acce
ssi

bilit
y

Bran
d &

 id
en

tit
y

Nev
er

Once
 per 

ye
ar

Oth
er

Once
 per 

month

Se
ve

ral
 tim

es 
per 

ye
ar

Support for Jerningham Street closures 
- highest priority frequency:

Support for Jerningham Street closures 
- highest ranking frequency:

A ‘ranking question’ was used as a tool to better understand community 
priorities on the identified Design Principles for Melbourne Street. 

The results indicated that the community considers ‘Brand and identity’ 
to be the highest priority Design Principle for Melbourne Street. 

Furthermore, the results indicated that the community supports closure 
of Jerningham Street several times a year.

*NAPA = North Adelaide Precinct Association

*Top priority (first choice/preference) results only

*Top priority (first choice/preference) results only

*Results of all preferences, averaged 

*Results of all preferences

Design Principles - highest priority: Design Principles - highest importance:

Online

Interactive mapNAPA session

Drop in session

Survey

Browsed FAQ’s

P
age 44



* Verbatim feedback from “Main Streets Revitalisation Community Consultation 2022”, City of Adelaide, July 2022

“More trees that have inbuilt up 
lighting that create atmosphere 

at night.”

“Introduce recycle waste bins 
recycling green waste.”

“Increase activity at the northeast end.”

“More mix of exciting retailers and 
services, locally made goods and 

shopping destinations to attract for 
visitors, contribute to residential amenity 
and more places have long open hours.”

“Wall art programs over last 2 
years were good. We need games 

tables, e.g. chess. Some 
sculptures, public art, music and 

things to do for kids.”

“My focus is safe crosswalks 
connecting side streets. Embracing 

people run and walk from Park 
lands to have coffee and 

breakfast.”

“Widen footpaths for on street 
dining, fix divots and tripping 
hazards, and add more pram 

crossings.”

“Lacking atmosphere, sad, 
uninspiring, empty spots give the 
street a feeling of decay, not so 

much of a village.”

“Encourage further and safer use 
of e-scooters. Traffic calming 

measure and reduce limit of 30.”
“Landscaping native greening to reduce 

the heat island effect, increase pedestrian 
area to create outdoor precinct, provide 

Alfresco dining/ verandah along the 
footpath to provide protection in all 
seasons. Come special periods such as 
Christmas, go over-the-top with the 

decorating the street.”

“I would like more outdoor dining. 
The space at the Lion is excellent, 
as is UR and the small numbers 

elsewhere are regular used.”

“We love the light on the trees 
brought warmness in winter. We 

couldn’t wait to see the street 
becomes busy like CBD, but more 

vibrancy in daytime and more dinner 
place options would be good. “

Community Feedback

P
age 45



Part four

Concept 
Design

P
age 46



Melbourne Street

Design Principles

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 22

Refresh the public realm 
Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and 
comfortable, that balances the needs of businesses, residents, and 
visitors using all modes of transport and contributes to our 
wellbeing and whole of life and sustainability goals. 

 
Left (top): Image by Morgan Sette; Left (middle): Image by Michael Haines Photography; 

Right (top): Image by Morgan Sette.

Vibrancy & creative connections 
Establish public art opportunities and provide a range of 
coordinated cultural projects and activities to increase activation, 
drive visitation and improve the visitor experience.

Curate the business and commercial mix
Establish a business and retail identity with a diverse offering to 
increase its popularity as a destination for locals and visitors. Support 
initiatives that assist in driving high value, destination tenants to the 
street.

Accessibility & connectivity
Pursue opportunities to achieve a more pedestrian friendly main 
street to support businesses, outdoor dining opportunities, enhance 
social interactions and provide a safer movement and traffic calming. 
Promote available parking and options for flexibility.

Unique brand and identity  
Create a streetscape that is cohesive, polished, bespoke and 
celebrates the existing historic village charm. Enhance the public 
‘heart’ as the epicentre and provide unique experiences ensuring a 
robust local community.

The concept design consolidates community feedback, data analysis, and a variety of design expertise, to set the 
framework for a cohesive design. These Design Principles, prioritised by the community, set the foundation for, and 
guide the following concept design. Refer page 8 for more information regarding community feedback results.

P
age 47



Design Summary
Melbourne Street

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 23

Concept 
Design

127 car parking spaces1

11 loading zones
(41 as flexible car parks 
within the Village Heart 

& Main Strip)2
Accessible parking at key 

locations

125 street trees
(40 new trees, 12 

within
 the Village Heart

& Main Strip)
500sqm garden beds3

(Full length of street)

8,835sqm
(Includes 590sqm 
of flexible car park 

spaces)
Increased parking 

provisions for 
micromobility

Trees and 
Garden Beds

Car Park 
Spaces

Traffic Speed 
Zones

Activity Zone 
(includes footpath)

30km/h
Stamped asphalt 

treatments to side 
streets (4)

Stamped asphalt 
treatment at Jerningham 

Street intersection

Existing
Condition

129 car parking spaces
 11 loading zones

125 car parking spaces
 11 loading zones

7,855sqm

No change

50km/h

No change

-

No change

85 street trees
0 garden beds

No change
Asset Renewal
only

One lane each direction + 
on-street parking +

non compliant bike lanes

No change

Flexible zones (Main Strip)
Improved amenity for public 

transport as required
Bike boxes at signalised 

intersections
Bike sharrows at key side 

streets for increased 
connectivity

Road Intersection 
Improvements Carriageway

Notes:
1 Loss of 9 car park spaces due to Stage 1 Wombat Crossings implementation. Increase of 10 car park spaces due to rationalisation of bus stops. Parking losses along Jerningham Street due to bike lane implementation is subject 
to further consultation and consideration.
2 Increased activity zones allows for potential to increase economic vitality.
3 Additional tree planting and new garden beds allows for greening improvement and acts as a barrier between the road and the footpath.
•	 Refer to Appendices A to F for further information regarding Transport Patterns, Precinct Parking Opportunities, and Traffic and Transport Impacts.
•	 These numbers and quantities as based on the Concept and may change during design development.
•	 Parking numbers for the existing condition based on City of Adelaide City Map data (September 2025).
•	 The reduction in car parks allows for an bold new street reconfiguration and updated linemarking to meet Australian Standards.
•	 The reduction in the speed limit aligns with Citywide Speed Limit Review (2024) and provides a safer pedestrian and bicycle friendly street reconfiguration. The reduction in the speed limit is subject to DIT approval.
•	 Changes will occur in detailed design such as DIT approval requirements, sightline assessments, vehicle turn path assessments and safety assessments.

Lighting and 
Public Art

New public 
lighting to length 

of street
Decorative 

lighting 
opportunities 
within Village 

Heart and Main 
Strip

-

No change

P
age 48



Design Benefits Statistics
Melbourne Street

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 24

Based on 1.2 people

Area: 13m2 
car park 
space

Daily 
Spend*

Based on 6 parks Based on 10 seats

x 1 x 6 x 10

Reduction in 
speed

Reduction in 
noise

30

40 %

Reduced noise. The World Health 
Organisation (WHO) suggests traffic noise is 
the second biggest environmental stressor 
on public health, after air pollution. 

Comfort 
levels 

Increased 
connections

Linger longer

A quieter street means a more comfortable street for people to 
have conversations and community interactions. 
Reduced need for longer sight lines means better visibility 
and more space for trees and greening, adding to the comfort 
levels of the street. 

A slower street encourages people 
to use active transport and spend time on streets, 
contributing to sense of community. More people 
walking, wheeling, cycling and dwelling is better 
for business. A slower street will contribute to 
improving people’s health and wellbeing and help 
main streets thrive. 

Reallocation Reallocation 
of private of private 
vehicular vehicular 
space to space to 
space for space for 
peoplepeople

Road & 
parking

Road 
& parking

Footpath 
& verge

Footpath, 
activity 

zones, & 
greening

Flexible parking

90 %

60 %

20 %

Survives a 
collision

Source: carsp.ca/research/resources/road-safety-information/safe-speeds *Refer Appendix F

Pedestrian Priority 

                
Results in 
fatality

30 kph

40 kph

50 kph 80 %

10 %

A safer street

Improved 
liveability 
& increased 
visitation

41%
59%

45%

3%

52%

$950
$1700 $1660

Existing

P
age 49



LANE
END

LA
NE

LA
NE
EN
D

LANE

M

T

M M

M

T

VILLAGE      HEART MAIN     STRIP

Stage 2: Public Realm Refresh

REFER TO PLAN 1 REFER TO PLAN 2 REFER TO PLAN 3 REFER TO PLAN 4 REFER TO PLAN 5 REFER TO PLAN 6

Stage 1 Stage 1

Melbourne Street

Design Overview

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 25

STAGE 1: Wombat Crossings (2026)

•	 New safer crossing points giving pedestrian 
priority at the west and east end. Includes garden 
beds integrated to stormwater system - refer 
Appendices J and K.

STAGE 2: Public Realm Refresh

Lighting

•	 New public lighting and electrical renewal 
(including new light poles) to length of street.

•	 Decorative lighting opportunities to Village Heart 
and Main Strip.

Street Furniture

•	 Upgraded urban elements to CoA suite - bins, 
seats, bike racks, planter boxes, decluttering 
footpath, activating frontages and improving 
street amenity.

Vehicle Speed Limit

•	 Slower 30km/h environment for a safer and quiet 
flow, enhancing pedestrian comfort and safety.

Bus Stop Rationalisation

•	 Consolidate and provide new bus stop location 
(combining 3 and 3A) for a better use of kerbside 
space and spacing of stops - refer Appendix E.

Tree Planting

•	 New street trees to infill gaps in tree canopy to 
provide continuous shade along the footpath, 
cool and soften the streetscape as well as 
increase comfort for all users, to the length of the 
street.

Stormwater System Renewal

•	 Stormwater system upgrade where required.

N.T.S.

N

Wider footpaths within the Village Heart &    
Main Strip

•	 Improve pedestrian access, comfort and 
movement, highlighting its importance through 
a new surface treatment for footpath. Includes 
new paver banding to soften transition at the 
interface from widened footpaths back to existing 
kerb alignment. 

Kerb Ramps and Stamped Asphalt Treatments 
within the Village Heart & Main Strip

•	 New compliant kerb ramps and stamped asphalt 
treatments on intersections to improve safety, 
accessibility, and street amenity.

Parking within the Village Heart & Main Strip

•	 Flexible on-street parking spaces defined with 
removable bollards, supporting both outdoor 
dining and parking when and where needed, 
while creating a more welcoming and accessible 
public realm. Minimal on-street parking impacts. 

Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD)         
Garden Beds within the Village Heart & Main Strip

•	 Incorporate low-level planting along the verge, 
utilising smart stormwater solutions to improve 
water sustainability and biodiversity.

Public Art Opportunity within the Village Heart

•	 Curated public art, and wayfinding that 
transforms Melbourne Street from a thoroughfare 
into a destination. 

Notes
•	 Changes may occur during detailed design dependant on key stakeholder consultation and design requirements.

Since 2024, short-term improvements from the 2023 Concept Design Plan have enhanced and activated Melbourne Street (Refer Appendix I). Building on this move, long-term works are proposed, including:
•	 Stage 1: "Wombat Crossings": New eastern and western wombat crossings.
•	 Stage 2: Public Realm Refresh

	 The concept reimagines the Main Strip as a vibrant destination that celebrates local culture and supports businesses to thrive. By widening footpaths and extending flexible parking zones from Jerningham Street to Dunn Street, 
the design invites cultural activation, outdoor dining, and creative events, strengthening the street’s vibrant identity and enhancing its day-to-night appeal. Key features include refreshed surface materials, new public art, compliant 
kerb ramps and stamped asphalt at side streets, wider footpaths, lush garden beds, and flexible parking areas that meet the design principles and improve visitor experience. 
Street-wide upgrades unify the street’s look and feel through new lighting, upgraded urban elements, sustainable localised footpath improvements, and additional tree planting - suporting a more comfortable, accessible, and resilient 
public realm.
Together, these upgrades infuse Melbourne Street with renewed energy and charm - a dynamic and welcoming destination where heritage meets everyday vibrancy.

P
age 50



M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

LANE
END

LA
NE

ST. ANN’S COLLEGE #282 DOMAIN
#278-280

ATTUNED PSYCHOLOGY

#277
EYE

CONSULTANT 
SA

#273
COLLEY & CO
REAL ESTATE

#292 #286

#303 #287 DEEPACRES #281

#274
CHISHOLM ORTHOD

#266
(VACANT)

#267
GENWORTH

GROUP

#270
RONALD

MCDONALDS
HOUSE

#271
RONALD

MCDONALDS
HOUSE

STREETMELBOURNE

BR
O

U
G

H
A

M
 

PL
A

CE

N
EW

LA
N

D
S 

LA
N

E

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

1

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

N

LEGEND

Kerb ramp and tactiles

Extent of works - wombat crossing

Bin

Seat

Banner pole

Bike rack

WSUD garden bedNew light pole

Property boundary

Tactiles

Bus shelterExisting street tree

New street tree

Existing private tree

Kerb to be demolished

Bus stop #2A

Bus stop #2AExisting red brick pavers 
to be retained

UPGRADED BRANDING
Banner brackets1 
attached to flag poles for 
vibrant and welcoming 
entry statement

NEW TREES
New tree planting with integrated 
stormwater connections along 
the street to increase canopy 
cover and provide more shade

PEDESTRIAN PRIORITY
Wombat crossing2 formalising 
crossing point on western 
end, encouraging lower 
speeds, prioritising pedestrian 
movements and adding new 
garden beds with integrated 
stormwater solutions

Notes:
1 Funded by State Government / DIT $1M Grant Funding
(refer Appendix I)
2 Stage 1: funded by the Government of South Australia via 
the 2023-2026 National Road Safety Program - $600k Grant 
Funding (refer Appendix J)
3 Lower speed limit subject to Department for Infrastructure 
and Transport (DIT) approval

VEHICLE SPEED LIMIT
Reduce3 speed limit to 30km/h for 
a safer, slow speed environment, 
enhancing pedestrian amenity.
A 30km/h speed limit compared 
to the existing 50km/h adds 48 
seconds in travel time for a 1km 
distance (in free flowing conditions)

LINEMARKING
Improved delineation, and 
road safety; includes removal 
of non-compliant bike lanes 
along the street

STREET FURNITURE
Upgraded urban elements for 
a new CoA suite - bins, seats, 
bike racks, planter boxes, 
bus shelters, to declutter the 
footpath, activate frontages and 
to uplift the street

Melbourne Street - Plan 1 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 26

P
age 51



M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

#266
(VACANT)

#262
(VACANT)

#262
MATTHEWS ARCHITECTS

#254
NORTH ADELAIDE

GASTROENTEROLOGY

#232
FOX REAL ESTATE

#226
EYE SURGEONS SA/LBI FOUNDATION/

SURGICAL ORDER/DR. MATTHEW HOLMAN

#214
DEAN NEWBERY

#208
ADELAIDE

SPINE
AND 

BRAIN

#208
ADELAIDE

SPINE
AND 

BRAIN
#220

#246
TMJ CLINICS

#263
WORKFORCE

MEDICALS

#257
GOLDEN HASH CAFE

#241
THE DAVID 

ROCHE FOUNDATION

#241
THE DAVID 

ROCHE FOUNDATION

#241
THE DAVID 

ROCHE FOUNDATION

#231
VEICH RA & CO

#229
BENSON RADIOLOGY

#219 #215
GASTROENT.

SA

#209
THE SURGICAL

PRECINCT

#234

STREETMELBOURNE

N
EW

   S
T

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

2

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

N

LEGEND

Existing kerb ramp

Property boundary

Bin

Seat

Bike rack

New light pole

Existing street tree

Existing private tree

New street tree

Existing red brick pavers 
to be retained

Bus stop #3 to be removed and 
carparking to be reinstated

Bus stop #3 to be removed and 
carparking to be reinstated

NEW TREES
New tree planting with integrated 
stormwater connections along 
the street to increase canopy 
cover and provide more shade

NEW LIGHTING
Improved lighting1 throughout 
the street and highlighting 
iconic building facades, adding 
a higher level of elegance to the 
street and breathing life into the 
night-time economy - reusing at 
key spots suspended baskets2 
attached to the poles enhancing  
the street atmosphere

Melbourne Street - Plan 2 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 27

Notes:
1 Light pole locations are to be determined in detailed design
2 Funded by State Government / DIT $1M Grant Funding
(refer Appendix I)

P
age 52



LEGEND

New paved footpath

Stamped asphalt

Kerb ramp and tactiles

TactilesExisting street tree

New street tree

Existing private tree

Existing awning/verandah

Property boundary

Kerb to be demolished

Seat

New light pole

Existing mail box

Existing wayfinding sign

Bin

Bike rack

M

Public art opportunity

Existing public art

M

T

M M

#208
ADELAIDE

SPINE
AND 

BRAIN

#208
ADELAIDE

SPINE
AND 

BRAIN
#206

ADELAIDE
UROLOGY

#204
CRANIO
FACIAL

#202
NORTH

ADELAIDE

#200-198
MICHIN MOORE

#196
PROF. GREGORY

#192
FOX

#192
AHRENS

#168
AUST
POST

#168
SURGICAL

ASSISTANCE

#168
THAI

MASSAGE

#168
OLLIE

CHILDREN
SHOES

#168
SOYAS

BEAUTY

#168
PANINI
BAKERY

#168
CIBO

EXPRESS

#168

#168
AMPLIFON

#207 #201
QUEEN’S
PARLOUR

#195
HARLEY EYE

CLINIC

#191
WILLOW CHAMBERS

#185
NEW RESIDENTIAL

DEVELOPMENT

#183
NEW MIXED-USE
DEVELOPMENT

#161
THE LION HOTEL

#184
BETTER

BLADERS

#182
369

LABS

#186
(VACANT)

M
EL

BO
U

RN
E 

CT

FR
ED

ER
IC

K 
ST

JE
RN

IN
G

H
A

M
ST

RE
ET

STREETMELBOURNE

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

3

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

NLEGEND

New paved footpath

Stamped asphalt

Kerb ramp and tactiles

TactilesExisting street tree

New street tree

Existing private tree

Existing awning/verandah

Property boundary

Kerb to be demolished

Seat

New light pole

Existing mail box

Existing wayfinding sign

Bin

Bike rack

M

Public art opportunity

Existing public art

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

Existing red brick pavers 
to be retained

Bus stop #3A 
to be removed, 
carparking to be 
reinstated

NEW BANDINGS
New footpath pattern 
to transition to major 

works on the east side of 
Jerningham Street

NEW ARTWORK 
Celebrate the village heart and 
activated area with unique and 
iconic public art

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY 
Stamped asphalt treatments 
and new compliant kerb 
ramps to provide safer access 
at key crossing points

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS
Stamped asphalt treatment, and 
compliant kerb ramps for a more 

accessible pedestrian crossing

CONNECTED CYCLEWAY
Future works: new bike lane on 

Jerningham Street will provide accessible 
connection from Melbourne Street to 

the existing cycling network

NEW TREES  
New tree planting with integrated 

stormwater connections along 
the street to increase canopy 

cover and provide more shade

NEW BUS STOP LOCATIONS
Relocated bus stop location for 
a strategic access to the village 
heart (combine #3 and #3A bus 

stops). Refer to Appendix E
Opportunity for bus shelters

Melbourne Street - Plan 3 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 28

P
age 53



#160
TERRY
WHITE

#152
MARCELLINA

COSME
TIQUE MASSAGE

#146
MAJESTIC MINIMA HOTEL

#142
DIGITAL

MARKETING

#140
PILATES #116-120

PILATES

#138
THE CUT
HOUSE

#116-120
CHULPAN

#116-120
MELB.
HAIR

#116-120
THE ONLINE
DIRECTOR

#106
ELDER FINE ART

#106
ELDER 

FINE ART

#104
ALTA

MODA

#102#108
LEZIZZ

RESTAURANT

#116-120
MELBOURNE ST. GARDENS

#136
(VACANT)

#157-159
ONE RUNDLE
TRADING CO

#153-155
JALSA INDIAN BAR

& RESTAURANT

#149
(VACANT)

#145
TACTIX

#143
BARISTA

ACADEMY

#141
BEAUTY

VIBE

#131
SATO
REST.

#127
FU

COCKTAIL

#125
IMPULSE

BOUTIQUE

#125
THE SPOT

#123
SAINTGARDE

#117
UR COFFEE 
& BRANCH

#113
VENEZIANO

COFFEE

#109
LJR DANCE 
ACADEMY

#105-107
THE FOOD

PARK

#103
HEAT CAFE

#115
UR WOOD
FIRE PIZZA

#135
CABANA

RESTAURANT

#133
BEAUTY

MELBOURNE

BO
W

ER
   S

T

STREETMELBOURNE

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

4

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

N

Stamped asphalt

LEGEND

WSUD garden bed

New paved footpath

Driveway/flexible parking

Kerb ramp and tactiles

Tactiles

Existing street tree

New street tree

Existing private tree

Removable bollards

Seat

New light pole

Existing mail box

Bin

Bike rack

M

Existing awning/verandah

Property boundary

Kerb to be demolished

NEW BANDINGS
Red brick pavers reused 
as bandings on Main Strip 
precinct to link the new 
surface to the existing 
footpath treatment

Private light 
pole to be 
retained

WIDENED FOOTPATH
Widening footpath and 
upgrade the pavers throughout 
to refresh and revive, creating 
more opportunities to optimise 
activity zones with outdoor 
dining or places to stop and 
recharge

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY 
Stamped asphalt treatments 
and new compliant kerb 
ramps to provide safer access 
at key crossing points

ACTIVITY ZONES
Flexible zone at footpath grade 
with removable bollards may 
be used for outdoor dining, 
retail display and activation 
from adjacent businesses.
Minimal parking losses

GREENING
New trees and garden beds 
with integrated stormwater 
connections to increase canopy 
cover and provide more shade

NEW FOOTPATH 
SURFACE
New footpath finish at 
main strip precinct for a 
modern and refreshed 
look

REMOVABLE 
BOLLARDS 
Removable 
bollards to provide 
flexible parking 
opportunities

Melbourne Street - Plan 4 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 29

P
age 54



M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

M

T

#102 #100
BUTTER
& TOAST

#92
UNIQUE
BEAUTY

#90
DAG.

BARBERS

#88
VELLOTTI

LAW

#86
CHINESE

MASSAGE

#82
RESOLVE DIVORCE

#80
LAUDRO

MAT

#78
COMF.
 & FIT

#78
BODY
WORX

#74
EXERCISE
PSICHOL.

#74A
FIKA ACAI

#74
CHURCH 

OF CYPRIAN

#66
LEWIS &
TURNER

#64
SPECTRUM

ADVICE

#62
PODIATRY

CENTRE

#58-60
CLARITY

MASSAGE

#54
IAN A.
HAIR

#54
HEDGES A.
PLANNING

#50
ORTHOPAEDIC

SURGEON

#48
CHOC.

SCHOOL

#46
THAI
SPA

#98
BEIRUT MEZZA

#97
RAFFI’S

GALLERY

#91
MINSKI

#89
GHAN
BARI

#87
CARE
EDGE

#81-91
THE 
INES
 AP

#83
LOTUS STORY
RESTAURANT

#79
CLIP

JOINT

#75-77
NORTH ADEL.
EYE CENTRE

#73
HIMALAYAN

KITCHEN

#69-71
TEN PAST TEN

#63
LORD MELBOURNE HOTEL

#53-55
DENTIST

#53-55
360ME

#53-55
OUR

WELLNESS

#53-55
CCI

GROUP

#53-55
SKS

ACCOUNT.

(VACANT)#93
CELLARBRATIONS

LJR DANCE 
ACADEMY

#103
HEAT CAFE

W
ES

T 
PA

LL
A

N
T

 S
T

FU
TU

RO
 L

A
N

E

D
U

N
N

  S
T

STREETMELBOURNE

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

5

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

N

LEGEND

Existing awning/verandah

Property boundary

Kerb to be demolished

Existing street tree

New street tree

Extent of works - wombat crossing

Stamped asphalt

WSUD garden bed

New paved footpath

Driveway/flexible parking

Kerb ramp and tactiles

Tactiles

Removable bollards

Seat

New light pole

Existing mail box

Existing wayfinding sign

Bin

Bike rack

M

Existing public art

Bus stop #4 Existing footpath 
extension2 for outdoor 
dining area

Bus stop #4

Existing red brick 
pavers to be 
retained

Existing “Fork in Road”
public art

Existing Pedestrian 
Actuated Crossing
(signals)

NEW TREES
New tree planting with integrated 
stormwater connections along 
the street to increase canopy 
cover and provide more shade

PEDESTRIAN PRIORITY
Wombat crossing3 formalising 
crossing point on eastern 
end, encouraging lower 
speeds, prioritising pedestrian 
movements and adding new 
garden beds with integrated 
stormwater solutions

BIKE SHARROWS
Bike sharrows at key 

side streets to improve 
safety and increase 

connectivity into 
Melbourne Street

NEW BANDINGS
Red brick pavers reused 

as bandings on Main Strip 
precinct to link the new 

surface to the existing 
footpath treatment

WIDENED FOOTPATH
Widening footpath and upgrade 
the pavers throughout to 
refresh and revive, creating 
more opportunities to optimise 
activity zones with outdoor 
dining or places to stop and 
recharge

NEW FOOTPATH 
SURFACE
New footpath finish 
at main strip precinct 
for a modern and 
refreshed look

NEW BANDINGS
New footpath pattern to 
transition to major works 
on the Main Strip precinct

NEW LIGHTING
Improved lighting1 throughout 
the street and highlighting 
iconic building facades, adding 
a higher level of elegance to the 
street and breathing life into the 
night-time economy - reusing at 
key spots suspended baskets2 
attached to the poles enhancing  
the street atmosphere

Notes:
1 Light pole locations are to be determined in detailed design
2 Funded by State Government / DIT $1M Grant Funding
(refer Appendix I)
3 Stage 1: funded by the Government of South Australia via 
the 2023-2026 National Road Safety Program - $600k Grant 
Funding (refer Appendix K)

PARKING
Combined wayfinding 
and variable message 
car park availability sign2 
near Dunn St

FOOTPATH SURFACE
Localised footpath 
(clean and relay), 
kerb and watertable 
improvements where is 
needed

Melbourne Street - Plan 5 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 30

P
age 55



LA
NE
EN
D

LANE

#46
THAI
SPA

#42
ZAPATAS MEXICAN

RESTAURANT

#28
STIRLING
HOUSE

#20
LOCAL

HERITAGE
BUILDING

#18
LOCAL

HERITAGE
BUILDING

#12
HOUSE HOUSE

#16
HOUSE

#36
NEWS

COTTAGE

#36
ALFIES

COTTAGE

#36
HOUSE

#36
ROW

HOUSES

#53-55
SKS

ACCOUNT.

#53-55
YAKITORI
TAKUMI

#53-55
ARCH

COSMET.

#21-39
COMFORT HOTEL

ADELAIDE MERIDIEN

#21-39
COMFORT HOTEL

ADELAIDE MERIDIEN

#17
HOUSE

#13
CGIS / 2XE

PAEDIATRICS AT NORTH ADELAIDE#21-39
CARLTON DRAUGHT

BREWERY FRESH
EA

ST
 

PA
LL

A
N

T
 S

T

A
RT

H
U

R 
   S

T

M
A

N
N

  T
CE

M
A

N
N

 
 

 
 

 R
O

A
D

STREETMELBOURNE

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

6

0 10m5
Scale 1:500 @ A3

N

LEGEND

Existing kerb ramp

Property boundary

Bin

Seat

Banner pole

Bike rack

New light pole

Existing awning/verandah

Tactiles

Bus shelterNew street tree

Existing street tree

Existing public art

Bus stop #5Existing red brick pavers 
to be retained

UPGRADED BRANDING
Banner brackets2 
attached to flag poles for 
vibrant and welcoming 
entry statement

CONNECTED CYCLEWAY
Retain bike lane link to 
Mann Road

VEHICLE SPEED LIMIT
Reduce3 speed limit to 30km/h for 
a safer, slow speed environment, 
enhancing pedestrian amenity.
A 30km/h speed limit compared 
to the existing 50km/h adds 
48 seconds in travel time for a 
1km distance (in free flowing 
conditions)

LINEMARKING
Improved delineation, and 

road safety; includes removal 
of non-compliant bike lanes 

along the street

NEW TREES
New tree planting with integrated 

stormwater connections along 
the street to increase canopy 

cover and provide more shade

NEW LIGHTING
Improved lighting1 throughout 
the street and highlighting 
iconic building facades, adding 
a higher level of elegance to the 
street and breathing life into the 
night-time economy - reusing at 
key spots suspended baskets2 
attached to the poles enhancing  
the street atmosphere

NEW BANNER
Existing overhead 

catenary wire to be 
investigated for renewal 

and opportunity for new 
over-road banner

Notes:
1 Light pole locations are to be determined in detailed design
2 Funded by State Government / DIT $1M Grant Funding
(refer Appendix I)
3 Lower speed limit subject to Department for Infrastructure 
and Transport (DIT) approval

STREET FURNITURE
Upgraded urban elements for 
a new CoA suite - bins, seats, 

bike racks, planter boxes, 
bus shelters, to declutter the 

footpath, activate frontages and 
to uplift the street

Melbourne Street - Plan 6 of 6

Concept Design

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 31

P
age 56



#160
TERRY
WHITE

#152
MARCELLINA

COSME
TIQUE MASSAGE

#146
MAJESTIC MINIMA HOTEL

#142
DIGITAL

MARKETING

#140
PILATES #116-120

PILATES

#138
THE CUT
HOUSE

#116-120
CHULPAN

#116-120
MELB.
HAIR

#116-120
THE ONLINE
DIRECTOR

#106
ELDER FINE ART

#106
ELDER 

FINE ART

#104
ALTA

MODA

#102#108
LEZIZZ

RESTAURANT

#116-120
MELBOURNE ST. GARDENS

#136
(VACANT)

#157-159
ONE RUNDLE
TRADING CO

#153-155
JALSA INDIAN BAR

& RESTAURANT

#149
(VACANT)

#145
TACTIX

#143
BARISTA

ACADEMY

#141
BEAUTY

VIBE

#131
SATO
REST.

#127
FU

COCKTAIL

#125
IMPULSE

BOUTIQUE

#125
THE SPOT

#123
SAINTGARDE

#117
UR COFFEE 
& BRANCH

#113
VENEZIANO

COFFEE

#109
LJR DANCE 
ACADEMY

#105-107
THE FOOD

PARK

#103
HEAT CAFE

#115
UR WOOD
FIRE PIZZA

#135
CABANA

RESTAURANT

#133
BEAUTY

MELBOURNE

B
O

W
ER

   
ST

STREETMELBOURNE

KEY PLAN

MELBOURNE                                                       STREET

M
AN

N
 

RO
AD

BR
O

U
G

H
AM

 
PL

AC
E

JE
RN

IN
G

H
AM

 
ST

RE
ET

N

N
EW

 
ST

RE
ET

FR
ED

ER
IC

K
ST

RE
ET

W
. P

AL
LA

N
T

 S
TR

EE
T

E.
 P

AL
LA

N
T 

ST
RE

ET
AR

TH
U

R 
ST

RE
ET

D
U

N
N

ST
RE

ET

BO
W

ER
ST

RE
ET

A B

A B

LEFT TURN 
LANE 

CAR 
PARKING 

ZONE

VEHICLE LANE
EASTBOUND

VEHICLE LANE 
WESTBOUND    

FOOTPATH &
ACTIVITY ZONE

FLEXIBLE 
CAR 

PARKING 
ZONE

FLEXIBLE 
CAR 

PARKING 
ZONE

VEHICLE LANE
EASTBOUND

VEHICLE LANE 
WESTBOUND    

FOOTPATH &
ACTIVITY ZONE

FOOTPATH &
ACTIVITY ZONE

4.6m 2.1m 3.3m 3.3m 2.1m 4.6m

20m

FOOTPATH &
ACTIVITY ZONE

3.8m 2.1m 4.1m 3.3m 2.9m 3.8m

20m

STREET

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
BO

U
N

D
AR

Y

Not to scale

Not to scaleNot to scale

Melbourne Street
PLAN

TYPICAL SECTION - BTYPICAL SECTION - A

Cross Sections

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 32

P
age 57



Melbourne Street

Artist's Impression

New lighting

Lower speed 
limit

Bike boxes at 
signalised 

intersections

Compliant 
kerb ramps 
and shorter 

crossing 

Soften transition 
to existing 
footpath 

treatment

Tree 
planting Public art

Stamped asphalt at 
intersections within 
the Main Strip and 

Village Heart

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 33

View looking south-west toward Jerningham Street, new bandings for a soften transition on footpath treatments Existing

P
age 58



Melbourne Street

New lighting

Compliant kerb 
ramps Widened 

footpath 

Soften transition 
to existing 
footpath 

treatment

New footpath 
treatment

Garden beds

Tree 
planting

Flexible parking 
with removable 

bollards

Activity 
zones

Artist's Impression

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 34

View looking north-west: flexible parking with removable bollards on Melbourne Street Existing

P
age 59



Part five

Appendices

Melbourne Street, 1973
State Library of South Australia

P
age 60



Impacts to transport are being investigated through modelling driver 
behaviour and route choice options. 

‘Projected traffic increase’ onto parallel routes does not take into account 
mode shift and personal choice/ decision to use other modes of transport. 

Number of vehicles per day informed by DIT figures. Melbourne Street and 
Frome Road traffic volume collected in August 2025. Map shows daily traffic 
volumes (number of vehicles per day). 

Melbourne Street is currently 50km/h, and is proposed to be 30km/h with a 
change in street configuration to support the reduced speed limit.

A 30km/h speed limit compared to the existing 50km/h adds 48 seconds in 
travel time for a 1km distance in free flowing conditions.

Mapping information source: Infraplan February 2023 modified by CoA October 2025.

P
S
H

N
0 40 120 280m

Botanic Park

Peace Park

Bullrush Park/ 
Warnpangga 

(Park 10)

Bundey’s Paddock/ 
Tidlangga 
(Park 9)

Red Gum Park/ 
Karrawirra 
(Park 12)

Lefevre Park/ 
Nantu Wama 

(Park 6)

APPENDIX A

28
80

0

 8500

5060

1970

14900

15300

96
00

23700

15
30

0

33100

22
30

0

1900

65
70

5500

3050

2030

1430

6700

6000

44400

30800

3550

1150
600

9900

S

S

H

H

P

P

P

P

P From
e Road

Melbourne Stre
et

Finniss 
Street

MacKinnon Parade

Mackinnon Pde

Stanley Stre
et

Bundeys Road

Ward Street

Archer Street

Tynte Street

Gover Street

Barton Tce East

Lefevre Tce

King W
illiam

 Road

O
’Connell Street

Park Road

Princes H
w

y

M
ann Road

Jerningham
     Street

Dunn St

Kingsto
n Tce

Robe Tce
Walke

rvi
lle

 Tc
e

N
or

th
co

te
 T

ce

H
ACKN

EY RO
AD

   W
ar

  M
em

oria
l  D

rive

Transport Patterns
Melbourne Street

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 36

Adelaide Park Lands Trail

Potential increase in vehicle turns

Projected vehicle traffic increase

Possible future intersection modifications to 
accommodate potential additional movements

Destination Traffic Generator - off street car park

Destination Traffic generator - Hospital

Destination Traffic generator - School / Uni

Assumed through-traffic reduction

Legend

Future/existing enhanced cycle infrastructure, 
aligned with Integrated Transport Strategy (ITS)

Suburb to suburb through-traffic redistribution

Popular established cycle route

P
age 61



APPENDIX B

R=4

00M - 5
 MIN WALK

R=2
50

M - 3 MIN WALK

Tidlangga 
Park 9

Playground

Warnpangga 
Park 10

Precinct Car Parking Opportunities
Melbourne Street
An analysis of the car parking statistics show a reduction of on-street parking could occur through improving to improve legibility 
of the precinct and placing a greater emphasis on the capacity of the surrounding off-street car parks. Monitoring of capacity and 
turnover with smart sensors will help to determine occupancy rates to facilitate on-street at peak periods.

JERN
IN

G
H

AM
                                       STREET

BRO
U

G
H

AM
 PL

FRED
ERICK ST

N
EW

  ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

D
U

N
N

 ST

E PALLAN
T ST

BO
W

ER ST

STANLEY ST

KINGSTON                                                               TERRACE

KINGSTON TERRACE E

MACKINNON PD

WAR MEMORIAL DRIVE

FINNISS ST

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

MELBOURNE                                        STREET

FRO
M

E RO
AD

BROUGHAM PL

WARD ST

LE
FE

VR
E 

   
   

   
   

   
TE

RR
AC

E

Dunn Street Car park 
(CoA owned) 

Lion 
Hotel 

Parking

Je
rn

in
gh

am
 S

t
Ca

r P
ar

ki
ng

N

Existing On-street parking

Proposed Flexi-zone parking

Off-street car park (existing)

Car park access

On-street parking Streets with large capacity of on-street parking

N

JERN
IN

GH
AM

  		
           STREET

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

BRO
U

GH
AM

 PL

FRED
ERICK ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

D
U

N
N

 ST

E PALLAN
T ST

BO
W

ER ST

N
EW

 ST

SIR
 ED

WIN
 

SM
ITH

 AV

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

MELBOURNE                               STREET

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 37

SIMPLIFIED LIMITS
Rationalise time limits of parking to 
improve legibility of restrictions and 
maximise turnover. All parking within 
the precinct will be reviewed to ensure 
optimisation with the aim to improve 
capacity and offset any reductions as 
part of a precinct wide parking review. 

WAYFINDING
Clearly indicate public transport options 
in the precinct.
Work with private car park operators to 
improve signage to off-street car parks 
and introduce smart parking signage to 
show real-time parking availability.

P

IMPROVED WALKABILITY
Encourage alternatives to private car 
transport such as public transport, bike 
riding and walking within the precinct. 

BETTER ‘END OF TRIP’ FACILITIES
Improve public transport facilities to 
encourage take-up of alternative modes 
of transport. 

1P

Parking catchment - 3 to 5 minute walk
On-street parking available within walking distance from Melbourne Street 
Data collated from Citymap March 2023 

45

3936
41

1226737

P
age 62



MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 38

Vacant Occupied Total Vacancy Rate Occupancy Rate

5 114 119 4.2% 95.8%

Date range: Jan-Oct 2025

95 Melbourne 
Street

Melbourne/Jerningham 
Street intersection

Average daily visits 2,958 3,175

Average weekly visits 19,631 21,472

Average monthly visits 89,926 96,527

Total visits 899,258 965,269

Visitation & Vacancy Data
Melbourne Street

APPENDIX C

Q3 July/September 2025:
Vacancy Rates

Melbourne Street Vacancy Rates - Historic Comparison

Melbourne Street Foot Traffic Trends (YTD 2025)

Jan 25
0

20,000

95 Melbourne St

Melbourne/Jerningham St intersection

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

To
ta

l V
isi

ts

Fev 25 Mar 25 Apr 25 May 25 Jun 25 Jul 25 Ago 25 Sep 25 Oct 25

Visitation (pedestrian numbers)

•	 Premises that were located on the corner of a main street and had a physical contribution to the main streets were included in the count, even if the 
official address was not on the main street.

•	 Premises located on level one or two of a building were not counted as these premises are typically office spaces and whilst they do contribute to the 
overall occupancy of the street they are not shopfronts which the audience considers is the reflection of the main street analysis.

•	 Premises that were vacant but leased were counted as occupied. 

•	 This report includes a number of commercial facing retail streets not included in previous reports. Streets were counted if they had 13 shops within 130 
metres.

•	 Please note this data only includes the external (street) facing premises and excludes all residential properties, and all ground level premises of the 
Melbourne Street Gardens building.

•	 Overall, the vacancy rate for Melbourne Street increased by 2.7 percentage points year-on-year compared with Q3 2024. 

Pedestrian counting sensors on two locations on Melbourne Street were 
installed on 7 December 2024 and started their counts from that day. 
Device counts are measured through tools that do not explain complete 
visitation. The pedestrian count figures represent a sample of people and 
should be viewed as a best estimate. More people may have visited the 
area that were not counted by the limitations of the footfall tools and 
therefore the data is best used for trend analysis. Data is sourced 
from Kepler Analytics who use mobile phone wifi sensor technology.

The following data was collected by the Adelaide Economic 
Development Agency (AEDA) which is a subsidiary of the City of 
Adelaide. 

AEDA was established in January 2021 to accelerate economic growth in 
the city. AEDA works closely with businesses, industry groups, the State 
Government, and other relevant organisations to deliver a range of 
programs to achieve our vision in making Adelaide the most liveable city 
in the world. Led by a skills-based board with expertise across retail, 
hospitality, property development, place making, business development, 
investment, events, and tourism, AEDA aims to attract investment and 
support businesses, grow the visitor economy, support residential 
growth, as well as market the city and Rundle Mall.  

P
age 63



Existing max. queue length on each direction (in metres)

Estimated max. queue length on each direction (in metres)

Alternative routes in AM peak

Proposed changes on Melbourne/Jerningham Street signalised 
intersection (right turn movement from Melbourne Street)

Existing max. queue length on each direction (in metres)

Estimated max. queue length on each direction (in metres)

Alternative routes in PM peak

Proposed changes on Melbourne/Jerningham Street signalised 
intersection (right turn movements)

N N

447m  286m
519m  547m

238m

312m

116m

301m

Tidlangga 
Park 9

Playground

Tidlangga 
Park 9

Playground

Warnpangga 
Park 10

Nantu Wama 
Park 6

Nantu Wama 
Park 6

Warnpangga 
Park 10

JERN
IN

G
H

AM
 STREET

JERN
IN

G
H

AM
                                  

BRO
U

G
H

AM
 PL

BRO
U

G
H

AM
 PL

FRED
ERICK ST

N
EW

 ST

FRED
ERICK ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

W
 PALLAN

T ST

D
U

N
N

 ST

D
U

N
N

 ST

E PALLAN
T ST

E PALLAN
T ST

BO
W

ER ST

BO
W

ER ST

STANLEY ST STANLEY ST

KINGSTON                                                               TERRACE KINGSTON                                                               TERRACE

KINGSTON TERRACE KINGSTON TERRACE

WAR MEMORIAL DRIVE

WAR MEMORIAL DRIVE

FINNISS ST
FINNISS ST

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

MELBOURNE     	                                    STREET MELBOURNE                                     		     STREET

FRO
M

E RO
AD

FRO
M

E RO
AD

BROUGHAM PL
BROUGHAM PL

WARD ST
WARD ST

LE
FE

VR
E 

   
   

   
   

   
TE

RR
AC

E

LE
FE

VR
E 

   
   

   
   

   
TE

RR
AC

E

MACKINNON PD MACKINNON PD

MACKINNON PD MACKINNON PD

N
EW

 ST

 STREET

Traffic and Transport Impacts
Melbourne Street

APPENDIX D

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 39

OPERATION OF INTERSECTION IN THE MORNING PEAK PERIOD

Improved traffic flow for all approaches on Melbourne Street.

OPERATION OF INTERSECTION IN THE AFTERNOON PEAK PERIOD

Improved traffic flow for all approaches on Melbourne Street.

Not to ScaleNot to Scale

MORNING PEAK QUEUE LENGTH AFTERNOON PEAK QUEUE LENGTH

RIGHT TURN 
PROHIBITED 
FROM WEST

RIGHT TURN 
PROHIBITED 
FROM EAST

An assessment related to traffic impacts associated with the concept was conducted in October 2025. 
It is anticipated that some motorists will change their route and volumes may reduce; like that experienced in Frome Road with 
up to 40% reduction in traffic volumes during peak periods removed following roadworks undertaken in January 2025. 
All other movements will see a reduction in queue lengths with right turn movements required to be prohibited as shown below.

P
age 64



Mapping information source: DIT September 2025 modified by CoA October 2025.

N

Bus Stop Average 
Weekday

Average 
Saturday

Average 
Sunday

Stop 2A Melbourne St - North West side 65 38 29
Stop 2A Melbourne St - South East side 54 31 29
Stop 3 Melbourne St - North West side 18 11 7
Stop 3 Melbourne St - South East side 21 65 42
Stop 3A Melbourne St - North West side 29 26 18
Stop 3A Melbourne St - South East side 88 71 51
Stop 4 Melbourne St - North West side 33 21 19
Stop 4 Melbourne St - South East side 84 69 48
Stop 5 Melbourne St - North West side 33 24 27
Stop 5 Melbourne St - South East side 75 50 37
Grand Total 500 406 37

Current coverage

Future coverage

Bus stop to remain

Bus stop to be removed

Proposed Bus stop

Botanic Park

Peace Park

Bullrush Park/ 
Warnpangga 

(Park 10)

Red Gum Park/ 
Karrawirra 
(Park 12)

Lefevre Park/ 
Nantu Wama 

(Park 6)

Melbourne Stre
et

Finniss 
Stre

et

MacKinnon Parade

Mackinnon Pde

Ward Street

Archer Street

King W
illiam

 Road

Park Road

M
ann Road

Jerningham
     Street

Dunn   St

Kingsto
n Tce

   W
ar

  M
em

oria
l  D

rive

Bus Stop Rationalisation
Melbourne Street

APPENDIX E

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 40

Not to Scale

PATRONAGE DATA

Source: DIT, September 2025

An assessment related to bus stop rationalisation impacts was conducted in September 2025. 
The proposal involves consolidating bus stops 3 and 3A into a single location outside the Village Heart, optimising kerbside space 
and spacing of stops.
DIT (bus service operators) have supported the proposed changes, noting that the walking catchment remains virtually unchanged 
with the new bus stop arrangements.

P
age 65



Above: Flexible Parking Zones on King William Street, Hyde Park. Image by Michael Haines Photography

Above: Image by Urbis, 2021, based on the following: 
•	 Dining parklet occupancy, expenditure and duration of stay based on: Urbis, 2021, Extended Outdoor Dining Program Evaluation, for Cities of 

Melbourne, Yarra and Stonnington
•	 Bike parking occupancy, expenditure and duration of stay based on: Alison Lee & Alan March (2010) Recognising the economic role of bikes: sharing 

parking in Lygon Street, Carlton, Australian Planner, 47:2, 85-93,DOI: 10.1080/7293681003767785 (factored into 2021 Australian Dollars)
Other assumptions and notes
•	 Occupancy - bike parking 6 space, car parking 1.2 people per car, dining parklet 10 seats.
•	 No. of hours per day of occupancy - bike parking 8 hours, car parking 14 hours [1hr timed parking with turnover], dining parklet 8 hours
•	 Bike Parking Occupancy 61%, Dining Parklet Occupancy 63%, Car Parking Occupancy 85%

Evidence-based design and planning shows there are significant economic benefits associated with 
balancing space for parking, outdoor dining, cycle parking and other activities, mixing the use of public 
space. 

By improving the quality of the urban environment, people are more likely use a space and stay in 
a location. In order to make this change, often significant reallocation of space across a street (from 
boundary to boundary) is required. For example, widening footpaths by narrowing traffic lanes, or 
converting a former on street car park space to make room for trees and garden beds. 

There is often a perception that a loss of car parking with the introduction of pedestrian and cycle 
friendly interventions would negatively impact retail sales. However, research has proven this isn’t the 
case.

By reallocating space for parking, not removing parking all together, space is created for other activities 
that have a direct benefit to directly adjacent businesses and surrounding businesses, lifting overall 
investment opportunities and appeal of the whole street.

“Kerbside parking is not dead, but the economic benefits of other uses suggest 
there must be more variety. Beyond the dining parklet, what other uses are there 
for our kerbs? How about supporting a broader range of businesses by using 
parking spaces for sports clubs and gyms, coffee carts, food vans, groceries and live 
music? Why not expand the idea of supporting thriving communities and using 
these spaces as galleries and museums, library classes, playgrounds and more 
green spaces?”

- Alison Lee, Director of Urbis

“Better streets mean better business. Attractive public space and better designed 
streets are not simply aesthetic or safety improvements.  
Better streets attract more people and more activity, thus strengthening both 
communities, the businesses that serve them and the city’s economy as a whole.” 

- Janette Sadik-Khan, 
Commissioner, New York City Department of Transportation, 2013

“High quality walking and cycling environments around shops, 
neighbourhood activity centres and mainstreets are vital for the 
economic health of South Australia.” 

- Dr Rodney Tolley,  
Heart Foundation, Good for Busine$$, 2011

Further reading:
1.	 Good for Busine$$, The benefits of making streets more walking and cycling friendly
2.	 Rethinking the Kerb
3.	 Economic benefits dining parklets bike parking car parking
4.	 The Economic Benefits of Sustainable Street

Benefits of Reallocating Public Space
Melbourne Street

APPENDIX F

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 41

P
age 66



King William Road
Hyde Park, South Australia

Precedent Projects APPENDIX G

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 42

The City of Unley redeveloped King William Road in 2019 to refresh 
the aging main street into a bustling outdoor dining and retail 
precinct. 

The redevelopment transformed the street with the introduction 
of 50 street trees, garden beds, larger outdoor dining spaces, 
unobstructed footpaths and public art. 

Pedestrians have been prioritised with the introduction of zebra 
crossings to safely enable people to move from one side of the 
street to the other, something that was difficult for many people to 
navigate prior to the upgrade. The new design maintains 2 lanes of 
traffic, public transport bus routes and on-street parking.

High quality materials and a refined public realm palette of furniture 
celebrate the unique character and history of the precinct. 

This project was the winner of the 2020 Mainstreet SA’s Public Space 
and Streetscape Design Award.

This project is a relevant precedent to it’s revitalisation of a wider 
precinct, and it’s similar street configuration to Melbourne Street, 
with one traffic lane in each direction, and flexible spaces for a mix 
of activities including outdoor dining and car parking.

Learnings:
•	 Reduced on-street parking does not impact trade
•	 Parking sizes need to be adequately sized 
•	 Rollover kerb profile needs to facilitate easy parking 

manoeuvres.

Above image by Michael Haines Photography

P
age 67



Hindley Street west
Adelaide, South Australia

APPENDIX HPrecedent Projects

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 43

Completed in July 2014, the City of Adelaide, in partnership with the 
Commonwealth Government, State Government (DPTI) and UniSA, 
redeveloped the western end of Hindley Street between Liverpool 
and Register Streets. 

Key project design objectives included: 
•	 narrowing the carriageway,
•	 designing the street for low speeds 
•	 removing the on-street parking 
•	 increasing the footpath widths
•	 removing the kerbs, minimising asphalt
•	 removing the signalised pedestrian crossing
•	 removing the bike lane so bikes and vehicles share the same lane
•	 increasing amenity for people. 

The space was the first of its kind in Adelaide - it is a street that 
prioritises people and place without many traditional streetscape 
treatments. The project has been an important contributor to the 
revitalisation of the city’s West End, with significant investment in 
properties and new businesses opening at this end of Hindley Street.

Design features such as pedestrian crossings, raised roadway 
treatment and flush kerbs, and narrowed traffic lanes have resulted 
in significantly reduced traffic speeds, and improved pedestrian 
safety in this part of Hindley Street. 

Learnings:
•	 Stone road pavements require careful consideration.

Above image by CoA

P
age 68



N.T.S.

N

PP

F

F

C

C

Relocated bins (6)
Relocated seats (12)
Planter boxes (29)

Relocated bike racks (6)
New festoon light (2)
New suspended planters (30)

New banner brackets (8)
New footpath extension (1)
New Dunn St Car Park Sign (1)

APPENDIX I

FRED
ERICK 

ST JERN
IN

GH
AM

           STREET

D
U

N
N

 ST

BO
W

ER ST

N
EW

 ST

N
EW

LAN
D

S 
LN

SIR
 ED

WIN
 

SM
ITH

 AV

M
AN

N
 TERRACE

M
AN

N
 RO

AD

BRO
U

GH
AM

 PL

W
. PALLAN

T 
ST E. PALLAN

T 
ST

ARTH
U

R ST
LEGEND

COMPLETED

* NOTE: Other actions are still pending DIT approval

COMPLETED COMPLETED COMPLETED COMPLETED UNDERWAY (BY EOFY)

Short Term Improvements - Implemented
Melbourne Street

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 44

Rationalisation of street 
furniture
Reorganise street furniture on 
the street, removing/ relocating/ 
adding street furniture where 
required (bins, seats, bike racks, 
planter boxes)

Temporary footpath extensions

Trial in front of Himalayan Kitchen 
and Lord Melbourne Hotel (x2)

Entry Statement Banner 
Brackets
Convert existing flag pole into 
banner poles, by adding banner 
brackets and installing banners on 
existing location (x8)

Festoon lights (co-funded)

Welcome and delight visitors 
and passers by with temporary 
decorative ‘sparkly festoon’ 
lighting to selected businesses’ 
front (x2)

Suspended planter boxes

Installation of suspended planter 
boxes on existing light poles (x30)

Dunn St Car Park Sign

Combined wayfinding and 
electronic car park sign to be 
installed near Dunn Street

Following the endorsed Concept Plan in 2023, the State Government (Department for Infrastructure and Transport - 
DIT) $1M Grant Funding is focused on enhancing and activating the street, including:

P
age 69



APPENDIX J

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 45

Stage 1 - West Wombat Crossing
Melbourne Street
The State Government via the 2023-2026 National Road Safety Program $600k Grant Funding is focused on 
formalising N-S crossing points at the western and eastern end of Melbourne Street to improve pedestrian safety and 
movements. The design includes new garden beds with integrated stormwater solutions.
Construction is anticipated to commence in March 2026.

View looking east along Melbourne Street of proposed wombat crossing Existing

P
age 70



APPENDIX K

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - MELBOURNE STREET City of Adelaide | December 2025 46

Stage 1 - East Wombat Crossing
Melbourne Street

View looking west along Melbourne Street of proposed wombat crossing Existing

The State Government via the 2023-2026 National Road Safety Program $600k Grant Funding is focused on 
formalising N-S crossing points at the western and eastern end of Melbourne Street to improve pedestrian safety and 
movements. The design includes new garden beds with integrated stormwater solutions.
Construction is anticipated to commence in March 2026.

P
age 71



25 Pirie Street, Adelaide
Ph 8203 7320

cityofadelaide.com.au 

 

 

Image credits
All images and photographs used in this document 
belong to the City of Adelaide unless stated otherwise, 
and have been appropriately credited. 

P
age 72



Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

 

Tuesday, 2 December 2025 
Infrastructure and Public 
Works Committee 

Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade 
 

Strategic Alignment - Our Corporation 
Program Contact:  
Mark Goudge, Associate Director, 
Infrastructure 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Tom McCready, Director,  
City Infrastructure 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to report on the engagement and investigations associated with the petition received 
by Council at its meeting on 26 March 2024 requesting an ‘enquiry into the merits of the proposed upgrade to the 
free-bus stop on Kingston Terrace’ and to seek approval to progress with the installation of Stop 5A and works 
associated with Stop 5.  

The Administration undertook a further review in consultation with the Department for Infrastructure and Transport, 
and following this review, an additional bus stop (Stop 5A, Kingston Terrace - north side) is proposed to be  
installed near the intersection of Jerningham Street, to better service users located in the north-east end of 
Kingston Terrace providing improved accessibility and convenience, whilst retaining Stop 5. 

The additional bus stop increases the original scope, which was presented to residents, to upgrade the existing bus 
stop (Stop 5, Kingston Terrace – north side) in accordance with the requirements for Disability Standards as part of 
Accessible Public Transport.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The following recommendation will be presented to Council on 9 December 2025 for consideration 

THAT THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL 
THAT COUNCIL 
1. Approves the proposed improvement works to the bus stops on Kingston Terrace as contained in 

Attachment A to Item 7.2 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee 
held on 2 December 2025.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6.2



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
 

City of Adelaide 
2024-2028 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Our Corporation  
Responding to our community through considerate review of their perspective to supportive 
decision making.  

Policy Not as a result of this report 

Consultation 
Meetings held with lead petitioner with the Department for Infrastructure and 
Transport (DIT) in attendance.  
Further engagement with residents to advice the outcome of their petition.  

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative Not as a result of this report 

Opportunities Not as a result of this report 

25/26 Budget 
Allocation $152,540 New and Upgrade 

Proposed 26/27 
Budget Allocation  Not as a result of this report 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Differs for each asset class, ranging from 15 to 50 years.  

25/26 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Maintenance costs are minimised through design development. Maintenance cost of 2% of 
project cost is required for additional assets.  

Other Funding 
Sources Not as a result of this report 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

DISCUSSION 
1. A petition containing 40 signatories was received by Council at its meeting on 26 March 2024 seeking the 

following action: 

 ‘An enquiry, into the merits of the proposed upgrade to the Free- Bus Stop on Kingston Tce (the 
Kingston Stop) and the siting of the Kingston Stop with a view, in particular, to the need for:  

• improved and more equitable access for residents of that portion of Lower North Adelaide, 
especially mobility impaired residents, of the lower Kingston Terrace area, who have limited 
access to the Free-Bus service;  

• having regard in particular to the facts that the Kingston Stop is disproportionately close to the 
Lefevre-Tynte junction Bus-Stop (the Lefevre Stop), duplicates the role of the Lefevre Stop, and 
thus  

• over-provides access to residents on the flat terrain of upper North Adelaide in the area near 
Lefevre Tce and between Ward and Tynte streets, at the expense of the lower Kingston Terrace 
area,  

with no physical works to be undertaken on site pending proper consideration of the report.’ 

2. The petition also suggested relocation of the Kingston Terrace Stop 5 further east closer to Jerningham 
Street to provide easier access for mobility-impaired residents and better serve the residents within lower 
Kingston Terrace. Refer to Link 1. 

3. Following the petition, a further review was undertaken in consultation with the Department for Infrastructure 
and Transport (DIT) to assess the bus stops location whilst considering proximity to destinations and 
passenger safety and accessibility and minimising traffic disruption.  

4. It should be noted that the Administration and DIT have met with the lead petitioner on a number of 
occasions and communicated the ability to incorporate a Stop 5A and the need for Stop 5, the petitioner is 
still seeking the removal of Stop 5. 

5. The lead petitioner is unfortunately overseas at present; however, it is the Administration’s view that the 
proposed works as presented satisfies what was presented in the petition, with the introduction of a Stop 5A. 

6. DIT has indicated that Kingston Terrace Stop 5 - north side is a well-travelled stop with boarding numbers of 
52 and 30 passengers per day on a typical weekday and weekend day respectively. The removal (or 
relocation) of this stop is not supported by DIT given the current usage and the needs of those who cannot 
navigate down to the bottom of Kingston Terrace, importantly the stop does not duplicate the role of LeFevre 
Terrace Stop 6 - east side.  

7. Another consideration for well-design bus stop placements is the appropriate spacing between stops to 
balance walking distances and ease of access for passengers against increased bus journey times. To 
directly respond to the request of providing an improved and more equitable access for residents located in 
the lower Kingston Terrace area, a new bus stop (Stop 5A Kingston Terrace – north side) is proposed to be 
installed at the base of the hill to eliminate the need for residents and passengers from the lower Kingston 
Terrace area to ascend the incline for public transport access. The new bus stop is supported by DIT as the 
stop spacings are compliant with the relevant guidelines.  

8. The spacing between bus stops are summarised below: 

Current bus stop spacing Proposed bus stop spacing 
LeFevre Terrace Stop 6 east side to  

Kingston Terrace Stop 5 north side – 336m. 

LeFevre Terrace Stop 6 east side to  

Kingston Terrace Stop 5 north side – 336m. 

Kingston Terrace Stop 5 north side to  

Jerningham Street Stop 4 east side – 556m. 

Kingston Terrace Stop 5 north side to  

Kingston Terrace Stop 5A north side (new stop) – 230m; 

Kingston Terrace Stop 5A north side (new stop) to 

Jerningham Street Stop 4 east side – 326m 

 

9. Upon further review and the feedback received from the residents; the improvement works to the stops on 
Kingston Terrace would involve the following: 

Page 75

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g935/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Mar-2024%2017.30%20Council.pdf?T=10


 
 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee – Agenda - Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

9.1. Installation of a new bus stop (Stop 5A Kingston Terrace – north side) located near the intersection of 
Jerningham Street, within the lower Kingston Terrace area. The introduction of this additional stop 
removes the need for bus users to walk uphill approximately 230m from the Lower Kingston Terrace 
area to existing Stop 5. The stop will include a new concrete pad and seating for improved comfort.  

9.2. Renew existing Stop 5 Kingston Terrace (north side), by providing a new concrete pad and seating 
accompanied with new concrete path to match existing gravel path alignment within the Park Lands 
connecting the bus stop to Lefevre Terrace. The proposed upgrade to the bus stop is to achieve 
compliance with the relevant Disability Standards. The scope had been previously presented to the 
residents.  

10. The key design features and visualisation of the improvement works are contained in Attachment A. 

11. The proposed project budget is $152,540, with a pre-tender cost estimate of $193,333. The project budget 
will be adjusted once a preferred tenderer is selected to accommodate the market condition at the time of 
tender.   

12. Subject to Council consideration and approval we will engage the residents to advise the outcome of our 
review and complete the bus stop improvement works by the end of 2025/26.  

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Council Decision – 26 March 2025 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Improvement Works 

 

- END OF REPORT -  
 
 

Page 76



NOVEMBER 2025

Concept Design
Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade

P
age 77

A
ttachm

ent A



For Information Only | November 2025

Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade
Scope of Works

This project includes the upgrade of existing 
Bus Stop 5 (north side of Kingston Terrace, 
North Adelaide) to be compliant with the 
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA).  

The scope will also include the installation 
of a new stop, Bus Stop 5A (north side of 
Kingston Terrace near corner of Jerningham 
Street).  

A new path will link Lefevre Terrace to Bus 
Stop 5.  

All works will be in accordance with the 
requirements for Disability Standards as part 
of Accessible Public Transport.  

P
age 78



For Information Only | November 2025

Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade

EXISTING

Walking Catchments and Boarding Numbers

AVERAGE NUMBER OF PEOPLE BOARDING PER DAY*

* For the month of February and March 2025  

Distance Between Existing Bus Stops: 
Stop 6 to Stop 5 = 336m 
Stop 5 to Stop 4 = 556m

Note: The above boarding numbers have been provided by DIT and have indicate that the 
existing stops are well utilised.  

Distance Between Bus Stops: 
Stop 6 to Stop 5 = 336m 
Stop 5 to Stop 5A (New) = 230m 
Stop 5A (New) to Stop 4 = 326m 

New Bus Stop 5A will:

1. Provide compliant walking distances between stops, consistent with DIT’s guidelines.

2. Increase the number of North Adelaide households within walking distance of the free bus service (blue 
shaded areas). 

3. Improve accessibility and convenience by providing an option for residents to board the bus at the bottom 
of the Kingston Terrace hill.  Passengers boarding at stop 5A will need to alight at Stop 5 and walk downhill 
towards their residences. 

 
 

PROPOSED

South Side

Stop 5 (South Side) Stop 5 (North Side)

Weekdays 45 52

Weekend 6 30

Walking Catchment Legend
Existing Catchment for 
Stop 6, 5 and 4

Walking Catchment Legend
Existing Catchment for 
Stop 6, 5 and 4
Catchment for New Stop 
5A

P
age 79



For Information Only | November 2025

Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade

PROJECT LOCATION

‘Country Tan’ exposed 
aggregate concrete

Compliant bus stop area with tactile paving

New bench seat

New accessible exposed aggregate concrete waiting 
area and footpath to match existing shared-use path 
along Lefevre Terrace  

New path (‘Country Tan’ Exposed Aggregate, as 
pictured) to match existing gravel path alignment 

Existing lighting to be protected and retained

Existing vegetation to be protected and retained.  No 
removal of trees or plants.

DESIGN FEATURES:

KINGSTON TERRACE

BUS STOP

View of existing gravel path to existing bus stop

V1

1

2

5

4
3

1

2

3

4

5

EXISTING BUS STOP

ARTIST’S IMPRESSION 

LEFEVRE TERRACE

6

6

Bus Stop 5 (north side) Concept
V1

V1

P
age 80



For Information Only | November 2025

Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade

PROJECT LOCATION

New compliant stop, Bus Stop 5A area with tactile paving

Removal of 3 No. timed on-street car park spaces to accomodate 
length of bus zone. 

New bench seat

New accessible exposed aggregate concrete waiting area to tie in 
with existing path and pram ramp in the Park Lands

Existing fence to be protected and retained

Existing vegetation to be protected and retained.  No removal of 
trees or plants.

DESIGN FEATURES:

KINGSTON TERRACEBUS STOP
V1

1

2

3

4

JERNINGHAM
 STREET

Proposed Bus Stop 5A (north side) Concept

1

2

3

4

5

5

View of existing parallel parking where new stop 5A is proposed

EXISTING BUS STOP

ARTIST’S IMPRESSION 

V1

V1

6

6

P
age 81


	Agenda
	5.1 Hutt Street Revitalisation - Revised Option B and E
	PURPOSE OF WORKSHOP
	KEY QUESTIONS
	Workshop for Hutt Street Revitalisation - Revised Option B and E
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17


	6.1 Melbourne Street Revitalisation Concept Endorsement
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A for Melbourne Street Revitalisation Concept Endorsement

	6.2 Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A for Kingston Terrace Bus Stop Upgrade




